
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, May 9, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.

Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via
email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
 Presentation from the Stoughton Wellness Coalition
 Stoughton Redevelopment Authority Update
 Municipal Clerk’s Week 2017 Proclamation
 National Public Works Week 2017 Proclamation
 Nursing Home Week 2017 Proclamation
 Drinking Water Week 2017 Proclamation
 Syttende Mai 2017 Proclamation

2. Minutes and Reports:
 Finance Committee (4/11/2017), Redevelopment Authority (4/12/2017), and Public Safety

Committee (3/22/2017)

3. Public Comment Period:

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. April 25, 2017 Council Minutes
B. January 26, 2017 Committee of the Whole Minutes
C. April 20, 2017 Committee of the Whole/Board of Education Minutes

OLD BUSINESS

5. R-44-2017- A resolution approving a borrow agreement relating to the development of
land in Business Park North. (Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017)

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin,

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and

location given below.



NEW BUSINESS

6. R-64-2017- Resolution Authorizing the issuance and sale of $7,660,000 General Obligation
Promissory Notes, Series 2017A (Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017)

7. R-65-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve this
resolution, urging the Governor and the Legislature to pass legislation to protect
homeowners and main street businesses from having even more of the property tax
burden shifted to them. (Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)

8. R-66-2017- Resolution Authorizing the 2017 Section 5310 Subrecipient Agreement
between the City of Madison and City of Stoughton related to grant to purchase two
minivans for shared-taxi service (Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017)

9. R-67-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary
Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Area
Resource Team (START). (Public Safety Committee recommends approval 4-0)

10. R-68-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary
Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Skaalen
Retirement Services, INC. (Public Safety Committee recommends approval 4-0)

11. R-69-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary
Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton
Opera House Friends Association (SOHFA) (Public Safety Committee recommends
approval 4-0)

12. Discussion and possible action regarding Joint Meeting of the Committee of the Whole
along with the Stoughton Board of Education, tentatively scheduled for July 20, 2017.

13. R-70-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to initiate the Planned
Development process for properties located between Fourth Street and Eighth Street and
south of E. South Street to the Yahara River, Stoughton, WI, excluding single-family
residential along E. South St. and 7th St. (see map).

14. R-71-2017- Resolution to Approve the proposal for Architecture Consulting Services

to determine the structural integrity of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building
(Redevelopment Authority recommends approval 7-0, Finance Committee to discuss May 9,
2017)

15. The Council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis. State Statute
19.85(1)(e) to consider the acquisition of property for Public Works Facility and
property located at 300 S Sixth St, Stoughton, WI and may return into open session
to take action on matters discussed in closed session.

16. ADJOURNMENT



Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, May 9, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A 


QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are 


unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via 


email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Presentation from the Stoughton Wellness Coalition 


 Stoughton Redevelopment Authority Update 


 Municipal Clerk’s Week 2017 Proclamation 


 National Public Works Week 2017 Proclamation 


 Nursing Home Week 2017 Proclamation 


 Drinking Water Week 2017 Proclamation 


 Syttende Mai 2017 Proclamation 


 


2.   Minutes and Reports:  


 Finance Committee (4/11/2017), Redevelopment Authority (4/12/2017), and Public Safety 


Committee (3/22/2017) 


 


3.      Public Comment Period:   


 


4.      CONSENT AGENDA 


 A. April 25, 2017 Council Minutes 


 B. January 26, 2017 Committee of the Whole Minutes 


C. April 20, 2017 Committee of the Whole/Board of Education Minutes 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. R-44-2017- A resolution approving a borrow agreement relating to the development of 


land in Business Park North. (Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017)  


 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and 


location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





NEW BUSINESS 


 


6. R-64-2017- Resolution Authorizing the issuance and sale of $7,660,000 General Obligation 


Promissory Notes, Series 2017A (Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017) 


 


7. R-65-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve this 


resolution, urging the Governor and the Legislature to pass legislation to protect 


homeowners and main street businesses from having even more of the property tax 


burden shifted to them. (Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0) 


 


8. R-66-2017- Resolution Authorizing the 2017 Section 5310 Subrecipient Agreement 


between the City of Madison and City of Stoughton related to grant to purchase two 


minivans for shared-taxi service (Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017) 


 


9. R-67-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary 


Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Area 


Resource Team (START). (Public Safety Committee recommends approval 4-0) 


 


10. R-68-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary 


Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Skaalen 


Retirement Services, INC. (Public Safety Committee recommends approval 4-0) 


 


11. R-69-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary 


Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton 


Opera House Friends Association (SOHFA) (Public Safety Committee recommends 


approval 4-0) 


 


12. Discussion and possible action regarding Joint Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 


along with the Stoughton Board of Education, tentatively scheduled for July 20, 2017. 


 


13. R-70-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to initiate the Planned 


Development process for properties located between Fourth Street and Eighth Street and 


south of E. South Street to the Yahara River, Stoughton, WI, excluding single-family 


residential along E. South St. and 7th St. (see map). 


 


14. R-71-2017- Resolution to Approve the proposal for Architecture Consulting Services  


to determine the structural integrity of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building 


(Redevelopment Authority recommends approval 7-0, Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 


2017) 


 


15. The Council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis. State Statute 


19.85(1)(e) to consider the acquisition of property for Public Works Facility and 


property located at 300 S Sixth St, Stoughton, WI and may return into open session 


to take action on matters discussed in closed session. 
 


16. ADJOURNMENT 







 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 


information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley 








Stoughton Wellness Coalition


A partnership of the City of Stoughton, Stoughton
Hospital and Stoughton Area School District, that
strives to promote healthy lifestyle choices and


reduce youth substance use and abuse by providing
education, engaging partners and delivering
evidence based programs and services to the


community.







October 2015 DFC Mentoring Grant Award







The Stoughton Wellness Coalition uses
the Strategic Prevention Framework











Strengths


• Graduation rates have increased and remain higher than the state
average.


• School discipline reports and suspensions have decreased. Discipline
reports for alcohol and drug related offenses have also decreased.


• Adult and juvenile arrests have decreased overall as have alcohol and
drug related arrests for both adults and juveniles.


• Adults report access to mental health and substance services.


• The community schools are engaged with youth by providing
extracurricular activities and educational opportunities.


• Youth feel supported by their parents, schools and communities.


• Youth past 30 day alcohol, tobacco, prescription drug, and marijuana use has
decreased.


Stoughton Wellness Coalition







YRBS


Stoughton Wellness Coalition


12.8%


27.2%


18.3%


15.1%


11.1%


27.7%


17.0%


12.6%


5.7%


21.8%


12.0%


9.9%


0.0%


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


Cigarette Alcohol Marijuana Prescription Drugs


30 Day Use


2013 2014 2016







• The number of children receiving free/reduced lunch and living in
poverty has increased.


• Parents and youth believe youth access alcohol and prescription
drugs at home and from older friends and siblings.


• 14.5% of parents report strongly agreeing or agreeing it is
okay to offer alcohol beverages to their children under 21.


• Youth report regular inappropriate sexual behavior among
their peers.


• Misperception between adult perception of youth behavior
and actual youth behavior.


Challenges


Stoughton Wellness Coalition







Our First Challenge: Underage Drinking


• Data: YRBS 50.2% report having


tried alcohol before the age of 18.


• 21.8 % report using alcohol in the


past 30 days.


• Community Survey showed 80.8%


of adults believe that underage


drinking is a problem in the community.







Root Cause: Availability/Access


High density of alcohol retailers in the community.


Data: Approximately 35 liquor licenses currently within the city limits.


Youth Report getting alcohol from parents or taking it from home.


Data: Youth are taking alcohol from homes.


Community Survey showed 73.3% of adults believe youth sneak from their own or
a friend’s home.


Some retailers are not checking ID.


Data: Community Survey showed that 53.6 % of adults believe not difficult for
youth to drinks in bars. Alcohol Compliance Checks are not done regularly.







Root Cause: Community Norm


Youth are drinking on public and private property.


Data: Youth Focus groups indicate that youth are drinking at school.


Community survey indicates that 95.1% of adults believe youth drink at
private residents; 30% of adults report seeing youth drunk; 47.4 % of adults
believe youth can order drinks in bars, and 71.6% of adults believe youth
get alcohol at parties.


Adults allow youth to drink at homes.


Data: YRBS 28.1% of youth report parent approval of their drinking alcohol.


Community survey indicates 26.7% of adults believe drinking among those
18 and under is acceptable; 19.1% of adults believe it’s acceptable for
youth to drink if they don’t get drunk and/or drive.







Our Second Challenge: Prescription Drugs


• Data: YRBS 9.9% of youth report


using prescription drugs that do


not belong to them.


• Community Survey showed


62.4% feel prescription drug


misuse is a problem in our


community. In contrast, 37.6%


of adults believe it’s not a


problem, or a minor problem.







Root Cause: Availability/Access


High Density of Prescription Medications being distributed in the
community.


Data: Stoughton has 3 pharmacies, a hospital with a surgical unit and an
ER, 3 medical clinics, 6 skilled nursing facilities, home health, 10 dentists,
and several veterinarians. All of these entities distribute prescription
medications in the community


Youth Report getting prescription drugs from family and friends.


Data: YRBS-9.9% of youth report using prescription medications that do
not belong to them in the past 30 days. Focus groups reporting Adderall,
Marijuana and other drugs are easy to get at school.







Root Cause: Community Norm


Not all medications are being disposed of properly.


Data: # of pills distributed through PDMP System, # of pounds of medications
dropped at Medication Disposal event. # of pills distributed through Skilled
Nursing and Home Health providers.


Not all prescribers use best practices.


Data: # of prescribing professionals receiving training. Youth Focus group
reporting Adderall is easy to get at school. YRBS 9.9% of youth report using
prescription drugs that do not belong to them.


Parents/family members share prescription medications with others.


Data: Youth reporting that they got Rx drugs from family/friends. Community
survey indicates that 15.3% of adults believe youth who experiment will grow out
of it. 40.2% of adults don’t see misuse for Rx drugs by those under 18 as a
problem.







CADCA’s Seven Strategies for Community
Change


1. Providing Information
2. Enhancing Skills
3. Providing Support
4. Enhancing Access/Reducing
Barriers
5. Changing Consequences
(Incentives/Disincentives)
6. Physical Design
7. Modifying/Changing Policies







Reality Maze
April 6th 8:00-3:00


Youth Education and Awareness Activity


The Reality Maze features scenarios that “bring to life” common
consequences of drug and alcohol use with the help of real-life
situations and community personnel playing their roles as they
would in their everyday professions.


• Pre-Test
• Scenario-Based Activities
• Simulation Experiences
• Post-Test







• Some scenarios feature underage drinking; where students are required to “walk
the line” while wearing “drunk goggles” to simulate intoxication.


• Scenarios also focus on underage drinking and driving and can result in a mock
accident or injury where students participate in the Maze while dealing with their
injuries; some students might be walking on crutches or maneuvering in a
wheelchair. EMS and hospital staff assist these students.


• Some Scenarios include situations of Sexting, which is a growing trend among
teens. Consequences of these circumstances are addressed by school officials
and police. Students learn about the Sex Offender Registry, and limitation on
college financial aid as well as restrictions on employment and housing locations.


• Because drinking reduces inhibitions, some scenarios will deal with the sensitive
topic of unprotected sex and possible date rape. Consequences of these
decisions are addressed by a trained group of Sexual Assault Recovery Prevention
staff members and are handled with care.


• Other consequences include Pregnancy and STD diagnosis and paternity
testing, and are addressed by Nursing staff.



























Follow Up


• Students were given a tip sheet on Refusal Skills.


• 9th Grade Health Class covers Drugs and Alcohol, followed by
Mental Health and Suicide during this time.


• School District Guidance Staff followed up with students
during Advisory to answer any questions and discuss Refusal
Skills.


• Parents received a follow-up email, including the tip sheet on
Refusal Skills to support conversations at home.















We invite you to join us in this critical work in the
Stoughton Community!


Through your volunteer time, shared resources and financial contributions,
we will reduce adolescent substance use and abuse, and increase


healthy lifestyle choices for all members of the Stoughton Community.


For more information contact us at (608) 877-5729,
tpellett.swc@gmail.com


Or like us on Facebook.








 


 


Meeting of the: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL 


Date/Time:  Thursday, April 20, 2017 @ 7:30 p.m. 


Location: Administrative & Educational Service Center (Board Room/Staff 


Development Center) 320 North St 


Members:  Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael Engelberger, Regina 


Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Tass Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, Lisa 


Reeves, Thomas Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl, and  


Mayor  Donna Olson  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Council President Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 


 


Swadley called the roll and noted that ten alderpersons were present, with Kittleson and Truehl 


being absent and excused. 


 


Introductions were made of all present from the City Council and SASD Board of Education. 


 


The School District presented information to the group related to School Finances, Enrollment, 


and an Update on Poverty.  The SASD clarified that the definition of homelessness is 


unaccompanied youth who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence.  As of 


4/17/2017 there are 68 homeless students in the district.   


 


The City presented information to the group related to City Finances, Joint efforts of the City and 


SASD, the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the proposed Riverfront Development, and proposed 


Development in Kettle Park West and Nordic Ridge. 


 


The group discussed what could be done to address the declining enrollment and poverty in the 


schools.  The group needs to look to create a plan that will bring young families into the 


community and the City needs to support plans that encourage a wide range of housing options. 


 


The group determined that they would schedule additional meetings but no dates were 


determined.        


    


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Boersma to adjourn the meeting at 10:05pm, second by Johnson.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


A resolution approving a borrow agreement relating to the development of land in Business Park
North.


Committee Action: Finance Committee action expected on May 9, 2017.


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-44-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


RECITALS


Whereas, the City has sold certain land to North American Fur Auctions, Inc. (NAFA), and NAFA
has requested that the City enter a borrow agreement authorizing NAFA or its approved assigns to use
borrow material from other City owned lands in the form attached as Attachment A to this Resolution.


RESOLUTION


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the agreement attached as Attachment
A is approved, and that the City is authorized to enter into such agreement with NAFA or its approved
assigns.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


3CL6927







AGREEMENT FOR DISPOSITION OF AVAILABLE BORROW MATERIAL


THIS AGREEMENT FOR DISPOSITION OF AVAILABLE BORROW MATERIAL
("Agreement") is entered into by and between the City of Stoughton (the "City") and North
American Fur Auction (US) Inc. , a Delaware business corporation, ("NAFA"), as of the
day of , 2017, (the "Effective Date").


RECITALS:


WHEREAS, the City owns certain property for an intended regional storm water
detention basin site as depicted on Figure 1 (the "City Property"); and


WHEREAS, NAFA desires to construct on a site adjacent to the City Property; and


WHEREAS, the City and NAFA have agreed that NAFA may excavate and use
available granular borrow material from the City Property (the "Available Borrow Material");
and


WHEREAS, NAFA is willing to acquire the Available Borrow Material from the City
and remove the Available Borrow Material from the City Property on the terms and
conditions set forth herein; and


WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton has adopted a resolution
declaring the Available Borrow Material as surplus and authorizing the execution of this
Agreement.


AGREEMENT:


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the covenants and
conditions set forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the NAFA hereby agree as
follows:


1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated as part of this Agreement.


2. Purchase And Sale. NAFA hereby purchases the Available Borrow Material from
the City and the City hereby sells and conveys the Available Borrow Material to the NAFA.


3. Consideration. In addition to the sum of One Dollar paid to the City, the NAFA
shall faithfully perform the work set forth in Section 4 (the ''Work") below, at NAFA's sole
cost and expense, as a material part of the consideration paid by NAFA to the City for the
Available Borrow Material.


4. NAFA's Obligations.


a. Approval of Starting Date and Completion Deadline. No land disturbances or







Work shall not begin without approval of the City’s Director of Planning and Development of
a starting date and schedule which shall be submitted by NAFA to the Director a minimum of
3 business days before the Work is scheduled to begin. The Work shall be completed not later
June 1, 2017 or such later date agreed in writing between the City and NAFA (the
"Completion Deadline"). The Completion Deadline may be extended upon written approval
granted by the Director or Planning and Development. No damages may be recovered by
NAFA or any person against the City for delay in completion of the Work.


b. Available Borrow Material shall include only borrow material that is granular
in nature and not overlying topsoil and clay. Prior to excavation and removal of Available
Borrow Material from the borrow site, overlying topsoil will be stripped and stockpiled at the
location designated on Figure 1. Overlying clay material that is encountered shall be removed
and stockpiled at the location indicated on Figure 1. Because this removed clay material will
be used by the City to construct a compacted clay liner for the future wet detention basin, care
shall be taken to keep removed topsoil and clay material segregated so that no mixing of soils
occurs. The City will have City consultants present at various times during borrow excavation
activities to represent the City. NAFA is to provide construction staking for the borrow area to
ensure compliance with this Agreement.


c. The extent of Available Borrow Material removed from the site shall not
extend beyond the planned subgrade elevation of the future detention basin improvements as
provided in Figure 1. The vertical distance of the planned subgrade elevation below the
following finished grade elevation ranges should be applied.


i. Pond Bottom (Elev. 864) to Normal Water Level (Elev. 869) = 2 feet
ii. Normal Water Level (Elev. 869) to 2-Year High Water Level (Elev. 871.


2) = 2. 5 feet
iii. 2-Year High Water Level (Elev. 871. 2) and Above = 0. 5 feet


d. NAFA may use the open borrow excavation site as a temporary sediment basin
to serve the NAFA site during construction. Because the basin will not have a pipe outlet,
NAFA is be responsible for any dewatering necessary to enable earthmoving activities. A
temporary stabilized overflow spillway should also be established in case the basin fills up
and overflows. NAFA is responsible for establishing proper construction site erosion control
measures to accommodate the borrow excavation activities, including but not limited to
establishment of perimeter silt fence around temporary soil stockpiles and appropriate
temporary stabilization of disturbed areas.


e. Removal of Available Borrow Material. NAFA shall remove the Available
Borrow Material from the City Property in accordance with the Plans. NAFA shall be
responsible for providing appropriate contractor oversight while work is being performed at
the City Property.


f. Material for Future City Use. NAFA shall excavate approximately 2,000 cubic
yards of granular material from the site for future City-use and stockpile this material at the
location shown on Figure 1.







g. Topographic Survey. Following completion of NAFA’s borrow excavation
activities, the City will arrange to conduct a record topographic survey of the borrow site to
confirm that the borrow excavation limits do not extend beyond the planned subgrade
elevations noted on Figure 1 and described herein.


h. Clearing and Grubbing. NAFA shall perform any necessary clearing and
grubbing of the City Property in order to perform the work contemplated in this Agreement.


i. Access. NAFA shall access the City Property only via NAFA owned property.


j. Permits and Approvals. NAFA shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, any
permits or approvals necessary to accomplish the work set forth in this Agreement.
Specifically, NAFA shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining all erosion control and
stormwater management permits required by applicable laws or regulations to perform the
Work under this Agreement.


5. Acceptance.


a. After the Work has been completed, and within 10 days after the topographic
survey described in Section 4.g. the City’s Director of Planning and Development or his
designee shall inspect the Work and, if acceptable to the Director, shall certify such completed
Work as being in compliance with this Agreement. Certification by the Director does not
constitute a waiver by the City of the right to take action on account of any failure to properly
complete the Work. Before obtaining certification of the Work, NAFA shall present to the
Director valid lien waivers from all contractors and subcontractors performing the Work.


b. The City will provide timely notice to the NAFA whenever inspection reveals
that the Work does not conform to the required standards and specifications or is otherwise
defective. The NAFA shall have 30 days from the issuance of such notice to cure the defect. If
the NAFA is unable to cure the defect within 30 days due to an event or circumstance beyond
the reasonable control of and without the NAFA's fault, neglect or negligence, the time to cure
the defect shall be extended for such time as the event or circumstance preventing cure is
removed.


6. Storm Sewer Connections. As part of the City’s regional stormwater basin
construction project, the City will construct two storm sewer pipe outfall connections to the
basin at the locations shown on Figure 1. The City will provide storm sewer pipe stubs as
indicated on Figure 1 that will enable NAFA to connect their stormwater conveyance system
in the future. NAFA shall provide the City with appropriate pipe outfall sizes. NAFA shall
reimburse the City costs to construct the two storm sewer outfalls, which shall include
required storm sewer pipe, apron end walls equipped with cutoff walls and pipe gates, stone
rip-rap aprons, and earthen berm construction.


7. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. In the performance of all work required
of NAFA under this Agreement, NAFA shall be solely responsible for compliance with all
applicable laws and governmental regulations.







8. Insurance. NAFA shall maintain a policy of general liability insurance, in an
amount not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) naming the City as an additional
insured. NAFA shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance evidencing the required
coverage prior to commencing any work on the City Property.


9. Reimbursement of City Consulting Fees. The NAFA shall pay to the City,
immediately following presentation of a written request for payment, all legal, engineering
and other consulting fees, costs and expenses incurred by the City in connection with the
review and approval of plans and specifications for the Work, inspections of the Work, record
topographic survey, and the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement. The estimated
costs of these expenses is $5,000.


10. Notices. Any notice required by this Agreement shall be deemed effective given in
writing and personally delivered or mailed by U. S. Mail as follows:


To NAFA: NAFA Properties Stoughton LLC
Attention: Brett Johnson
205 Industrial Cir.
Stoughton, WI 53589


NAFA's Attorney Laura S. Peck
Axley Brynelson, LLP
2 East Mifflin Street, Suite 200
PO Box 1767
Madison, WI 53703-1767


To the City: City of Stoughton
Attention: Rodney Scheel
381 E Main Street
Stoughton, WI 53589


City Attorney Matthew P. Dregne
Stafford Rosenbaum, LLP
222 W. Washington Avenue, Suite 900
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, WI 53701-1784


11. Miscellaneous.


a. Binding Effect. The obligations of NAFA and the City under this Agreement
shall be binding on their respective successors and assigns. NAFA shall be permitted to
assign this Agreement to an affiliate under common ownership and shall be permitted to make
a collateral assignment of this Agreement to a lender or other secured party, provided,
however, that no such assignment shall constitute a release of NAFA from the obligations and
liabilities under this Agreement. Any unauthorized assignment is prohibited.







b. No Waiver. No waiver of any provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or
constitute a waiver of any other provision, nor shall it be deemed or constitute a continuing
waiver unless expressly provided for by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by
both the City and NAFA, nor shall the waiver of any default under this Agreement be deemed
a waiver of any subsequent default or defaults. Either party's failure to exercise any right
under this Agreement shall not constitute the approval of any wrongful act by the other party
hereto.


c. Amendment/Modification. This Agreement may be amended or modified only
by a written amendment approved and executed by the City and NAFA.


d. Remedies upon Default. A default is defined herein as a party's breach of, or
failure to comply with, the terms of this Agreement and the failure to cure such breach within
thirty (30) days after the date of written notice from the non-defaulting party, or such longer
period of time as may be required to cure the alleged default so long as the party receiving
notice is diligently pursuing a cure. The parties reserve all remedies at law or in equity
necessary to cure any default or remedy any damages or losses under this Agreement. Rights
and remedies are cumulative, and the exercise of one or more rights or remedies shall not
preclude the exercise of other rights or remedies.


e. Entire Agreement. This written Agreement shall constitute the entire
agreement between NAFA and the City concerning the subject matter set forth herein, as of
the date hereof.


f. Severability. If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is held by the
courts to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, such illegality or unenforceability shall not
affect the validity of any other part, term, or provision and the rights of the parties will be
construed as if the invalid part, term, or provision was never part of the Agreement


g. Indemnification. NAFA, and its successors and assigns, shall indemnify, hold
harmless and defend the City and its officers, agents and employees, including but not limited
to any engineering consultant used by the City in connection with this Agreement or Work,
from any and all liability suits, actions, claims, demands, losses, costs, damages and expenses
or liabilities of every kind and description, including attorney costs and fees, for claims of any
character including liability and expenses in connection with the loss of life, personal injury
or damage to property, or any of them, brought because of any injuries or damages received or
sustained by any persons or property on account of or arising out of or occasioned wholly or
in part by any act or omission on NAFA's part or on the part of its agents, contractors,
subcontractors, invitees or employees, occurring on the City Property in the performance of
NAFA's obligations under this Agreement, except as are a result of the gross negligence or
willful misconduct of any officer, agent or employee of the City and except as related to
NAFA's discovery of any pre-existing environmental contamination on the City Property.


h. Ratification. NAFA hereby approves and ratifies all actions taken to date by
the City, its officers, employees and agents in connection with this Agreement.







i. Compliance with Laws. NAFA shall comply with all federal, state and local
laws with respect to the Plat and the Project, including but not limited to laws governing
building and construction, the environment, nondiscrimination, and employment and
contracting practices, to the extent they are applicable.


j. No Partnership. The City does not, in any way or for any purpose, become a
partner, employer, principal, agent or joint venturer of or with NAFA.


k. Good Faith. Both parties to this Agreement shall exercise good faith in
performing any obligation that party has assumed under the terms of this Agreement
including, but not limited to, the performance of obligations that require the exercise of
discretion and judgment.


l. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state
of Wisconsin.


m. No Private Right or Cause of Action. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
interpreted or construed to create any private right or any private cause of action by or on
behalf of any person not a party hereto.


n. Term. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until such time as
NAFA has completed all of NAFA's obligations under Section 4 above. The provisions of
Section 10. g. above shall survive the termination of this Agreement.


o. Construction of Agreement. Each party participated fully in the drafting of
each and every part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be construed strictly in favor
of or against either party. It shall be construed simply and fairly to each party.


p. Force majeure. Neither party shall be in default with respect to any obligation
hereunder to the extent that the failure to timely perform such obligation is due to an Force
Majeure Event. For the purpose of this Agreement, "Force Majeure Event" means any
circumstance not within the reasonable control of the party affected, but only if and to the
extent that (i) such circumstance, despite the exercise of reasonable diligence and the
observance of commercially reasonably practice, cannot be, or be caused to be, prevented,
avoided or removed by such party, and (ii) such circumstance materially and adversely affects
the ability of the party to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and such party has
taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to
avoid the effect of such event on the party's ability to perform its obligations under this
Agreement and to mitigate the consequences thereof.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
year and date first set forth above, and by so signing this Agreement, certify that they have
been duly authorized by their respective entities to execute this Agreement on their behalf.







CITY:


CITY OF STOUGHTON
Dane County, Wisconsin


By
Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST:


Lana Kropf, City Clerk







NAFA


NAFA PROPERTIES STOUGHTON LLC


By:
Name:
Its:


Approved as to Form:


__________________________
Matthew P. Dregne
City Attorney


Attachments:
Figure 1







TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS


PARCEL 051105121412


CITY OF STOUGHTON


CITY OF STOUGHTON


PARCEL 051105100079


101 BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


WV


WV


WV


1
0
"


WV


MH


MH


10"


8
7
0


8
7
0


870


8
7
0


87
0


POST


POST


SIGN


POST


SIGN


MH


MH


12"


12
"


10"


15
"


POST


IP


WV


IP


MH


10"


MH


IP


8
7
5


87
5


87
5


8
7
5


875


8
7
5


8
7
5


8
7
5


875


875


875


875


8
7
5


8
7
5IP


IPIP


IP


12"


12
"


1
2
"


12"


2
4
"


15
"


15
"


12"


1
2
"


12"
12
"


1
2
"


1
2
"


CITY OF STOUGHTON


PARCEL 051105100140


540 BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


8
7
6


4
8
"


4
8
"


2
4
"


24"


2
4
"


864


868


869


870
871


872
873


874


864


868


869
870


871
872


873
874


875


875


I
E
 
8
" 


E
 


X
X


X
.X


X


I
E
 
8
" 


W
 


X
X


X
.X


X
S


T
A
. 
  


+
 
 


M
A


T
C


H
 


L
I
N


E
S


E
E
 


S
H


E
E


T
 
 
 
 


STATIONS


2 DIGIT


CIRCLE


PARK


BUSINESS


IE = 869.0


48" RC AEW


IE = 869.0


24" RC AEW


STRUCTURE RIM 874.0


OUTLET CONTROL
NWL EL. = 869.0


DETENTION BASIN


PROPOSED WET


FENCE


SILT


WIDE PATH


FUTURE 10'


N


0 FEET  100 50


Toll Free (800) 242-8511


Milwaukee Area (414) 259-1181


Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289


www.DiggersHotline.com


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


     


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 P


R
O


P
O


S
E


D
 B


O
R


R
O


W
 S
IT


E
 E


X
H
IB


IT
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N
 B


U
S
IN


E
S


S
 P


A
R


K
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N
, 


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


   FIGURE 1   


   1-040.097   


S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\097\Micros\PLAN\Basin Grading Plan.dgn user: marksh 3/9/2017 2:11:08 PM



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Callout

PLANNED SUBGRADE 2.0' BELOW SHOWN FINISHED GRADE



marksh

Oval



marksh

Oval



marksh

Callout

EXCESS TOPSOIL STOCKPILE LOCATION



marksh

Callout

EXCESS CLAY STOCKPILE LOCATION



marksh

Callout

PLANNED SUBGRADE 0.5' BELOW SHOWN FINISHED GRADE



marksh

Callout

PLANNED SUBGRADE 2.5' BELOW SHOWN FINISHED GRADE



marksh

Oval



marksh

Callout

CITY GRANULAR MATERIAL STOCKPILE LOCATION



marksh

Dimension Line

215 ft 



marksh

Polygon Line



marksh

Polygon Line



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Polygon



marksh

Callout

PROPOSED STORM SEWER OUTFALLS AND RIP-RAP APRONS TO SERVE NAFA SITE(PIPE SIZE TO BE PROVIDED BY NAFA)



marksh

Arrow



marksh

Line



marksh

Arrow



marksh

Arrow





		5a-R-44-2017 3CL7145-Resolution (borrow agreement).pdf

		5b-3D11189-Borrow Agreement 5.2.17.pdf

		5c-Borrow Site - Figure 1-revised.pdf






QB\45155401.1


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution Authorizing the issuance and sale of $7,660,000 General Obligation
Promissory Notes, Series 2017A


Committee Action: Finance Committee to discuss May 9, 2017


File Number: R-64-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin
(the "City") adopted a resolution entitled: "Resolution Providing for the Sale of $7,660,000
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A" (the "Set Sale Resolution"), authorizing the
issuance of $7,660,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A for public purposes,
including various capital improvement plan projects; stormwater improvements; land
acquisition; and street improvements within Tax Increment District No. 6 (the "Project");


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within
the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in
Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;


WHEREAS, the City is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin
Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public
purposes;


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Set Sale Resolution, the City has directed Springsted
Incorporated ("Springsted") to take the steps necessary to sell general obligation promissory
notes (the "Notes") to pay the cost of the Project;


WHEREAS, Springsted, in consultation with the officials of the City, prepared an
Official Terms of Offering (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated
herein by this reference) setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Notes and
indicating that the Notes would be offered for public sale on May 9, 2017;


WHEREAS, the City Clerk (in consultation with Springsted) caused a form of notice of
the sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Official Terms of Offering to be
distributed to potential bidders offering the Notes for public sale on May 9, 2017;







-2-
QB\45155401.1


WHEREAS, the City has duly received bids for the Notes as described on the Bid
Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid
Tabulation"); and


WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by
the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid
requirements set forth in the Official Terms of Offering and is deemed to be the most
advantageous to the City. Springsted has recommended that the City accept the Proposal. A
copy of said Proposal submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as
Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that:


Section 1. Ratification of the Official Terms of Offering and Offering Materials. The
Common Council of the City hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Notes set forth in
Exhibit A attached hereto as and for the details of the Notes. The Official Terms of Offering of
the City and any other offering materials prepared and circulated by Springsted are hereby
ratified and approved in all respects. All actions taken by officers of the City and Springsted in
connection with the preparation and distribution of the Official Terms of Offering, and any other
offering materials are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.


Section 1A. Authorization and Award of the Notes. For the purpose of paying the cost
of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, the
principal sum of SEVEN MILLION SIX HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND DOLLARS
($7,660,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Proposal.
The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Notes for the sum set forth on the
Proposal (as modified on the Bid Tabulation and reflected in the Pricing Summary referenced
below and incorporated herein), plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a true
interest cost as set forth on the Proposal (as modified on the Bid Tabulation) is hereby accepted.
The Mayor and City Clerk or other appropriate officers of the City are authorized and directed to
execute an acceptance of the Proposal on behalf of the City. The good faith deposit of the
Purchaser shall be retained by the City Treasurer and applied in accordance with the Official
Terms of Offering, and any good faith deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be
promptly returned. The Notes shall bear interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal.


Section 2. Terms of the Notes. The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation
Promissory Notes, Series 2017A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of
$7,660,000; shall be dated their date of issuance; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates
per annum and mature on April 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on
the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference.
Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year commencing on
April 1, 2018. Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Notes is set forth on the Debt Service
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this reference (the
"Schedule").







-3-
QB\45155401.1


Section 3. Redemption Provisions. The Notes maturing on April 1, 2025 and thereafter
shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on April 1, 2024 or on
any date thereafter. Said Notes shall be redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from
maturities selected by the City and within each maturity, by lot, at the principal amount thereof,
plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.


[If the Proposal specifies that any of the Notes are subject to mandatory redemption, the
terms of such mandatory redemption shall be set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP
and incorporated herein by this reference. Upon the optional redemption of any of the Notes
subject to mandatory redemption, the principal amount of such Notes so redeemed shall be
credited against the mandatory redemption payments established in Exhibit MRP for such Notes


in such manner as the City shall direct.]


Section 4. Form of the Notes. The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be
executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated
herein by this reference.


Section 5. Tax Provisions.


(A) Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy. For the purpose of paying the
principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and
resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the
taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2017 through 2026 for
payments due in the years 2018 through 2027 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule.


(B) Tax Collection. So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the
Notes remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or
obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for. After
the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City
and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other
taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax
roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund
Account created below.


(C) Additional Funds. If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds
from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due,
the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall
be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied.


Section 6. Segregated Debt Service Fund Account.


(A) Creation and Deposits. There be and there hereby is established in the
treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct
from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously







-4-
QB\45155401.1


issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service
fund.


Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account
designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for $7,660,000 General Obligation Promissory
Notes, Series 2017A, dated June 8, 2017" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account
shall be maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or otherwise
extinguished. The Director of Finance and Economic Development/Treasurer shall deposit in
the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the City at the time of
delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) any premium which may be received by the City
above the par value of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the taxes
herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of and
interest on the Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay
principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money
Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11,
Wisconsin Statutes.


(B) Use and Investment. No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service
Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and
interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes
canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the
Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be
invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such
payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over
and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to
reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing
the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted
municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted
Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.
Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury
Regulations (the "Regulations").


(C) Remaining Monies. When all of the Notes have been paid in full and
canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service
Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the
Common Council directs otherwise.


Section 7. Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund. The proceeds of
the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be
paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund Account created above)
shall be deposited into a special fund separate and distinct from all other funds of the City and
disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which borrowed or for the payment of the
principal of and the interest on the Notes. Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be
temporarily invested in Permitted Investments. Any monies, including any income from
Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for







-5-
QB\45155401.1


which the Notes have been issued have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are
not needed and which obviously thereafter cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be
deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account.


Section 8. No Arbitrage. All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be
Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause
the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the
Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall
certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date
of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are not
"arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations.


Section 9. Compliance with Federal Tax Laws. (a) The City represents and covenants
that the projects financed by the Notes and the ownership, management and use of the projects
will not cause the Notes to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the
Code. The City further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the
extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes including, if
applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code. The City further covenants
that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any
action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the
proceeds of the Notes) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of
the Notes to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or
would otherwise cause interest on the Notes to be included in the gross income of the recipients
thereof for federal income tax purposes. The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with
the responsibility of issuing the Notes shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City
certifying that the City can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code
and Regulations.


(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and
restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the
Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent
consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and
to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply.


Section 10. Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The Notes are hereby
designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code,
relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax
purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.


Section 11. Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services. The Notes shall be
issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of
the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed
with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser
upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of
delivery (the "Closing"). The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Notes
may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City
has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures







-6-
QB\45155401.1


appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature. In the event that either of the officers
whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such
signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they
had remained in office until the Closing. The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and
directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and
acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing. The City
hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and
contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for
legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.
Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Notes is hereby
ratified and approved in all respects.


Section 12. Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent. The principal of and interest on the
Notes shall be paid by Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin,
which is hereby appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of
Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent"). The Fiscal Agency Agreement
between the City and the Fiscal Agent shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit F and incorporated herein by this reference.


Section 13. Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes. The City shall cause books
for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent. The person in
whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner
thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made
only to the registered owner thereof. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.


Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at
the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing. Upon such
transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or
transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the
Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book. No registration
shall be made to bearer. The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer.


The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are
authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer.


Section 14. Record Date. The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each
interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date"). Payment of
interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the
Notes as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record
Date.


Section 15. Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System. In
order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company,
New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the
Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the City Clerk or other authorized representative







-7-
QB\45155401.1


of the City is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf of the City to the
extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently on file in the City
Clerk's office.


Section 16. Official Statement. The Common Council hereby approves the Preliminary
Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as
"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule"). All
actions taken by officers of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary
Official Statement and any addenda to it or Final Official Statement are hereby ratified and
approved. In connection with the Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the
Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or Final Official Statement. The City Clerk
shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or Final Official
Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser.


Section 17. Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure. The City hereby covenants
and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written undertaking (the
"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial
information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in
accordance with the Rule. The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Notes or
by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the
Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of
the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the
Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes).


To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the
City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure
Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the
City's Undertaking.


Section 18. Record Book. The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of
proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct
statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the
Notes in the Record Book.


Section 19. Bond Insurance. If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond
insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions
necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to
agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are
acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment
of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights
of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and
notices to be given to the bond insurer. In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to
the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein.







-8-
QB\45155401.1


Section 20. Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date. All prior resolutions,
rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions
hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict. In the
event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid,
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof. The foregoing shall take
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law.


Adopted, approved and recorded May 9, 2017.


_____________________________
Donna L. Olson
Mayor


ATTEST:


____________________________
Lana Kropf
City Clerk


(SEAL)







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT A


Official Terms of Offering


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.


(See Attached)







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT B


Bid Tabulation


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.


(See Attached)







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT C


Winning Bid


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.


(See Attached)







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT D-1


Pricing Summary


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.


(See Attached)







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT D-2


Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.


(See Attached)







QB\45155401.1


[EXHIBIT MRP


Mandatory Redemption Provision


The Notes due on April 1, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to
mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption
price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made
in amounts sufficient to redeem on April 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds
specified below:


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______
____ ______ (maturity)


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______
____ ______ (maturity)


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______
____ ______ (maturity)


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______


____ ______ (maturity)]







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT E


(Form of Note)


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS


DANE COUNTY
NO. R-___ CITY OF STOUGHTON $_______


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2017A


MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE: CUSIP:


April 1, _____ June 8, 2017 ____% ______


DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME: CEDE & CO.


PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS
($__________)


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City"),
hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name
(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified
above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per
annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior
to maturity. Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year
commencing on April 1, 2018 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full. Both the
principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the
United States. Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the
Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Associated
Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent") or any
successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding
each interest payment date (the "Record Date"). This Note is payable as to principal upon
presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent.


For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the
levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby
irrevocably pledged.


This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $7,660,000, all
of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and redemption
provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes,
for public purposes, including various capital improvement plan projects; stormwater
improvements; land acquisition; and street improvements within Tax Increment District No. 6, as







-2-
QB\45155401.1


authorized by resolutions adopted on April 11, 2017 and May 9, 2017. Said resolutions are
recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for said dates.


The Notes maturing on April 1, 2025 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to
maturity, at the option of the City, on April 1, 2024 or on any date thereafter. Said Notes are
redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City and within
each maturity, by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption.


[The Notes maturing in the years ______________________________ are subject to
mandatory redemption by lot as provided in the resolution authorizing the Notes at the


redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption and without premium.]


In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in
book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by
registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic
transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than
thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date. If less than all of the
Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed
will be selected by lot. Such notice will include but not be limited to the following: the
designation, date and maturities of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the
date of redemption. Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice. The Notes shall
cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately
available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at
that time. Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be
outstanding.


It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to
exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have
existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the
City, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any
limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual
irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon,
when and as payable.


This Note has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt
obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended.


This Note is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the
office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as
depository for the Notes, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Notes
to the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together
with a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal







-3-
QB\45155401.1


Agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. Thereupon a new
fully registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new
depository in exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the
City for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such
registration. The Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the
Record Date, (ii) during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of
notice of any proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after
such Note has been called for redemption. The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and consider the
Depository in whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of
receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due
hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever. The Notes are issuable solely as negotiable, fully-
registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.


This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of
Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent.


No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall
impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any
default hereunder.







-4-
QB\45155401.1


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, by its
governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or
facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official
or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above.


CITY OF STOUGHTON,
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


By: ______________________________
Donna L. Olson
Mayor


(SEAL)


By: ______________________________
Lana Kropf
City Clerk







-5-
QB\45155401.1


Date of Authentication: _______________, ______


CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION


This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned resolution
of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin.


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN


By____________________________
Authorized Signatory







-6-
QB\45155401.1


ASSIGNMENT


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto
____________________________________________________________________________


(Name and Address of Assignee)


____________________________________________________________________________
(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee)


the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on
the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.


Dated: _____________________


Signature Guaranteed:


_____________________________ ________________________________
(e.g. Bank, Trust Company (Depository or Nominee Name)
or Securities Firm)


NOTICE: This signature must correspond with the
name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it
appears upon the face of the within Note in every
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatever.


____________________________
(Authorized Officer)







QB\45155401.1


EXHIBIT F


Fiscal Agency Agreement


(See Attached)







QB\45155401.1


FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT


THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 8th day of June, 2017 between the City of
Stoughton, Wisconsin (the "Municipality"), and Associated Trust Company, National
Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent").


WITNESSETH:


WHEREAS, the Municipality has duly authorized the issuance of its $7,660,000 General
Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A, dated June 8, 2017 (the "Obligations") pursuant to
the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes and resolutions adopted on April 11, 2017
and May 9, 2017 (collectively, the "Resolution"); and


WHEREAS, the Municipality is issuing the Obligations in registered form pursuant to
Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable Treasury
Regulations promulgated thereunder; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Resolution and Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes the
Municipality has authorized the appointment of the Fiscal Agent as agent for the Municipality
for any or all of the following responsibilities: payment of principal and interest on, registering,
transferring and authenticating the Obligations as well as other applicable responsibilities
permitted by Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes.


NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipality and the Fiscal Agent hereby agree as follows:


I. APPOINTMENT


The Fiscal Agent is hereby appointed agent for the Municipality with respect to the
Obligations for the purpose of performing such of the responsibilities stated in Section 67.10(2),
Wisconsin Statutes, as are delegated herein or as may be otherwise specifically delegated in
writing to the Fiscal Agent by the Municipality.


II. INVESTMENT RESPONSIBILITY


The Fiscal Agent shall not be under any obligation to invest funds held for the payment
of interest or principal on the Obligations.


III. PAYMENTS


At least one business day before each interest payment date (commencing with the
interest payment date of April 1, 2018 and continuing thereafter until the principal of and interest
on the Obligations should have been fully paid or prepaid in accordance with their terms) the
Municipality shall pay to the Fiscal Agent, in good funds immediately available to the Fiscal
Agent on the interest payment date, a sum equal to the amount payable as principal of, premium,
if any, and interest on the Obligations on such interest payment date. Said interest and/or
principal payment dates and amounts are outlined on Schedule A which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference.







-2-
QB\45155401.1


IV. CANCELLATION


In every case of the surrender of any Obligation for the purpose of payment, the Fiscal
Agent shall cancel and destroy the same and deliver to the Municipality a certificate regarding
such cancellation. The Fiscal Agent shall be permitted to microfilm or otherwise photocopy and
record said Obligations.


V. REGISTRATION BOOK


The Fiscal Agent shall maintain in the name of the Municipality a Registration Book
containing the names and addresses of all owners of the Obligations and the following
information as to each Obligation: its number, date, purpose, amount, rate of interest and when
payable. The Fiscal Agent shall keep confidential said information in accordance with
applicable banking and governmental regulations.


VI. INTEREST PAYMENT


Payment of each installment of interest on each Obligation shall be made to the registered
owner of such Obligation whose name shall appear on the Registration Book at the close of
business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date and
shall be paid by check or draft of the Fiscal Agent mailed to such registered owner at his address
as it appears in such Registration Book or at such other address as may be furnished in writing by
such registered owner to the Fiscal Agent.


VII. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND NOTICE OF REDEMPTION


(a) Principal Payments. Principal shall be paid to the registered owner of an
Obligation upon surrender of the Obligation on or after its maturity or redemption date.


[The Obligations due on April 1, 20__ and April 1, 20__ (the "Term Bonds") are
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot at a redemption price equal to
One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption, from deposits which are required to be made in
amounts sufficient to redeem on April 1 of each year the respective amount of Term
Bonds specified on the attached Schedule MRP.


The Municipality hereby directs and the Fiscal Agent hereby agrees to select the Term
Bonds to be redeemed on the dates set forth above and to give notice of such redemption as set
forth in substantially the form attached hereto as Schedule B by registered or certified mail,
facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic transmission or in any other
manner required by The Depository Trust Company at least thirty (30) days but not more than
sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Obligation
selected to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address shown on the registration books as of
the Record Date.


The Municipality, in accordance with Section III hereof, shall make payments sufficient
for the Fiscal Agent to pay the amounts due on the Term Bonds subject to mandatory







-3-
QB\45155401.1


redemption.]


(b) Official Notice of Redemption. In the event the Municipality exercises its option
to redeem any of the Obligations, the Municipality shall, at least 35 days prior to the redemption
date, direct the Fiscal Agent to give official notice of such redemption by sending an official
notice thereof by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery,
electronic transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company at
least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered
owner of each Obligation to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown in the
Registration Book. Such official notice of redemption shall be dated and shall state (i) the
redemption date and price; (ii) an identification of the Obligations to be redeemed, including the
date of original issue of the Obligations; (iii) that on the redemption date the redemption price
will become due and payable upon each such Obligation or portion thereof called for
redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and (iv) the
place where such Obligations are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, which


place of payment shall be the principal office of the Fiscal Agent. [Official notice of the


redemption of Obligations subject to mandatory redemption shall be given in the same manner.]


(c) Additional Notice of Redemption. In addition to the official notice of redemption
provided in (b) above, further notice of any redemption shall be given by the Fiscal Agent on
behalf of the Municipality to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and The Depository
Trust Company of New York, New York but neither a defect in this additional notice nor any
failure to give all or any portion of such additional notice shall in any manner defeat the
effectiveness of a call for redemption.


Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall be sent at least 30 days before
the redemption date by registered or certified mail, overnight delivery service, facsimile
transmission or email transmission and shall contain the information required above for an
official notice of redemption.


(d) Redemption of Obligations. The Obligations to be redeemed [at the option of the


Municipality] shall be selected by the Municipality and, within any maturity, shall be selected by


lot by the Depository described in Section VIII hereof. [Obligations subject to mandatory


redemption shall be selected as described in (a) above.] The Obligations or portions of
Obligations to be redeemed shall, on the redemption dates, become due and payable at the
redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date such Obligations or portions of
Obligations shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Obligations for redemption in
accordance with the official notice of redemption, such Obligations shall be paid by the Fiscal
Agent at the redemption price. Installments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date
shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial
redemption of any Obligation, there shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Obligation
or Obligations of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal. Each check or other
transfer of funds issued in payment of the redemption price of Obligations being redeemed shall
bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Obligations being redeemed with
the proceeds of such check or other transfer.







-4-
QB\45155401.1


VIII. UTILIZATION OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY


The Depository Trust Company's Book-Entry-Only System is to be utilized for the
Obligations. The Fiscal Agent, as agent for the Municipality, agrees to comply with the
provisions of The Depository Trust Company's Operational Arrangements, as they may be
amended from time to time referenced in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations executed
by the Municipality. The provisions of the Operational Arrangements and this Section VIII
supersede and control any and all representations in this Agreement.


IX. OBLIGATION TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE


The Fiscal Agent shall transfer Obligations upon presentation of a written assignment
duly executed by the registered owner or by such owner's duly authorized representative. Upon
such a transfer, new registered Obligation(s) of the same maturity, in authorized denomination or
denominations in the same aggregate principal amount for each maturity shall be issued to the
transferee in exchange therefor, and the name of such transferee shall be entered as the new
registered owner in the Registration Book. No Obligation may be registered to bearer. The
Fiscal Agent may exchange Obligations of the issue for a like aggregate principal amount of
Obligations of the same maturity if in authorized whole multiples of $5,000.


The Obligations shall be numbered R-1 and upward. Upon any transfer or exchange, the
Obligation or Obligations issued shall bear the next highest consecutive unused number or
numbers.


The Municipality shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the appropriate officers of the
Municipality are authorized to execute any new Obligation or Obligations necessary to effect any
such transfer.


X. AUTHENTICATION, IF REQUIRED


The Fiscal Agent shall sign and date the Certificate of Authentication, if any, on each
Obligation on the date of delivery, transfer or exchange of such Obligation. The Fiscal Agent
shall distribute and/or retain for safekeeping the Obligations in accordance with the direction of
the registered owners thereof.


XI. STATEMENTS


The Fiscal Agent shall furnish the Municipality with an accounting of interest and funds
upon reasonable request.


XII. FEES


The Municipality agrees to pay the Fiscal Agent fees for its services hereunder in the


amounts set forth on Schedule [B/C] hereto.







-5-
QB\45155401.1


XIII. MISCELLANEOUS


(a) Nonpresentment of Checks. In the event the check or draft mailed by the Fiscal
Agent to the registered owner is not presented for payment within five years of its date, then the
monies representing such nonpayment shall be returned to the Municipality or to such board,
officer or body as may then be entitled by law to receive the same together with the name of the
registered owner of the Obligation and the last mailing address of record and the Fiscal Agent
shall no longer be responsible for the same.


(b) Resignation and Removal; Successor Fiscal Agent. (i) Fiscal Agent may at any
time resign by giving not less than 60 days written notice to Municipality. Upon receiving such
notice of resignation, Municipality shall promptly appoint a successor fiscal agent by an
instrument in writing executed by order of its governing body. If no successor fiscal agent shall
have been so appointed and have accepted appointment within 60 days after such notice of
resignation, the resigning fiscal agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the
appointment of a successor fiscal agent. Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as
it may deem proper and prescribes, appoint a successor fiscal agent. The resignation of the fiscal
agent shall take effect only upon appointment of a successor fiscal agent and such successor
fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment.


(ii) The Fiscal Agent may also be removed by the Municipality at any time upon
not less than 60 days' written notice. Such removal shall take effect upon the appointment of a
successor fiscal agent and such successor fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment.


(iii) Any successor fiscal agent shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to
Municipality and to its predecessor fiscal agent an instrument accepting such appointment
hereunder, and thereupon the resignation or removal of the predecessor fiscal agent shall become
effective and such successor fiscal agent, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall
become vested with all the rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor, with
like effect as if originally named as fiscal agent herein; but nevertheless, on written request of
Municipality, or on the request of the successor, the fiscal agent ceasing to act shall execute and
deliver an instrument transferring to such successor fiscal agent, all the rights, powers, and trusts
of the fiscal agent so ceasing to act. Upon the request of any such successor fiscal agent,
Municipality shall execute any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting
in and confirming to such successor fiscal agent all such rights, powers and duties. Any
predecessor fiscal agent shall pay over to its successor fiscal agent any funds of the Municipality.


(iv) Any corporation, association or agency into which the Fiscal Agent may be
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its
corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or
association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it
is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor fiscal agent under this Agreement and
vested with all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities and privileges and all other matters as
was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or
conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding.


(v) Any successor fiscal agent shall be qualified pursuant to Sec. 67.10(2),







-6-
QB\45155401.1


Wisconsin Statutes, as amended.


(c) Termination. This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the payment in
full of all of the principal and interest on the Obligations to the registered owners of the
Obligations or (ii) five years after (aa) the last principal payment on the Obligations is due
(whether by maturity or earlier redemption) or (bb) the Municipality's responsibilities for
payment of the Obligations are fully discharged, whichever is later. The parties realize that any
funds hereunder as shall remain upon termination shall, except as may otherwise by law, be
turned over to the Municipality after deduction of any unpaid fees and disbursements of Fiscal
Agent or, if required by law, to such officer, board or body as may then be entitled by law to
receive the same. Termination of this Agreement shall not, of itself, have any effect on
Municipality's obligation to pay the outstanding Obligations in full in accordance with the terms
thereof.







-7-
QB\45155401.1


(d) Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one
and the same instrument.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement, being duly
authorized so to do, each in the manner most appropriate to it, on the date first above written.


CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN


By:_________________________
Donna L. Olson
Mayor


(SEAL)
_________________________
Lana Kropf
City Clerk


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Fiscal Agent


(SEAL) By:__________________________
Title___________________


Attest________________________
Title___________________







QB\45155401.1


SCHEDULE A


Debt Service Schedule
$7,660,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A


of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
dated June 8, 2017


(SEE ATTACHED)







QB\45155401.1


[SCHEDULE MRP


Mandatory Redemption Provision


The Obligations due on April 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a
redemption price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed
plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are
required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on April 1 of each year the respective
amount of Term Bonds specified below:


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1, 20__


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______
____ ______ (maturity)


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1, 20__


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______
____ ______ (maturity)


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1, 20__


Redemption
Date Amount


____ $______
____ ______


____ ______ (maturity)]







QB\45155401.1


[SCHEDULE B


NOTICE OF MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION*


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A


Dated June 8, 2017


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a portion of the Notes of the above-referenced issue which
mature on April 1, 20___ shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on April 1 of
the year set forth below, in the amount set forth below, at a redemption price equal to One
Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.


Redemption Date Principal Amount CUSIP Number


April 1, ____ $_______ ____________


Such portion of the Notes will cease to bear interest on the redemption date set forth above.


BY THE ORDER OF THE
COMMON COUNCIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


Dated: __________________


* To be provided by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic
transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust
Company, Attn: Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ 07310, not
less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the call date. At least thirty (30) days prior to
the call date notice shall also be filed electronically with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through


the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.]







-11-
QB\45155401.1


SCHEDULE [B/C]


(SEE ATTACHED)







41 1 East Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 2350
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202-4426
414.277.5000
Fax 414.271.3552
www,quarles.com


Attorneys at Law in
Chicago
lndianapolis
Madison
Milwaukee
Naples
Phoenix
Scottsdale
Tampa
Tucson
Washington, D.C.


April26,2017
VIA EMAIL


Ms. Tammy LaBorde
Director of Finance and Economic Development/Treasurer
City of Stoughton
381 East Main Street
Stoughton, V/I 53589


Scope of Engagement Re: Proposed Issuance of $7,660,000 City of Stoughton (the


"City") General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017 A (the "Securities")


Dear Tammy:


Vy'e are pleased to be working with you again as the City's bond counsel. Thank you for
youl confidence in us.


The purpose of this letter is to set forth the role we propose to serve and responsibilities
we propose to assume as bond counsel in connection with the issuance of the above-referenced
Securities. If you have any questions about this letter or the services we will provide, or if you
would like to discuss modifications, please contact me.


Role of Bond Counsel


Our bond counsel engagement is a limited, special counsel engagement. Bond counsel is
engaged as a recognized independent expert whose primary responsibility is to render an
objective legal opinion with respect to the authorization and issuance of municipal obligations.
If you desire additional information about the role of bond counsel, we would be happy to
provide you with a copy of a brochure prepared by the National Association of Bond Lawyers.


As bond counsel we will: examine applicable law; prepare authorizing and closing
documents; consult with the parties to the transaction, including the City's financial advisor or
underwriter or placement agent, prior to the issuance of the Securities; review certified
proceedings; and undertake such additional duties as we deem necessary to render the bond
counsel opinion described below. As bond counsel, we do not advocate the interests of the City
or any other party to the transaction. We assume that the parties to the transaction will retain
such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to represent their interests in this
transaction.


oB\45154781.1







Ms. Tammy LaBorde
April26,2017
Page 2


Subject to the completion of proceedings to our satisfaction, we will render our opinion
that:


1) the Securities are valid and binding general obligations of the City;


2) all taxable property in the territory of the City is subject to ad valorem taxation
without limitation as to rate or amount to pay the Securities; and


3) the interest paid on the Securities will be excludable from gross income for
federal income tax purposes (subject to certain limitations which may be
expressed in the opinion).


The bond counsel opinion will be executed and delivered by us in written form on the date
the Securities are exchanged for their purchase price (the "Closing") and will be based on facts and
law existing as of its date.


Upon delivery of the opinion, our responsibilities as bond counsel will be concluded with
respect to this financing; specifically, but without implied limitation, we do not undertake (unless
separately engaged) to provide any post-closing compliance services including any assistance
with the City's continuing disclosure commitment, ongoing advice to the City or any other party
concerning any actions necessary to assure that interest paid on the Securities will continue to be


excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, or participating in an Internal
Revenue Service, Securities Exchange Commission or other regulatory body survey or
investigation regarding or audit of the Securities.


In rendering the opinion, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and other
certifications of public officials and other persons furnished to us without undertaking to verify
the same by independent investigation.


The services we will provide under this engagement are strictly limited to legal services.
We are neither qualified nor engaged to provide financial advice and we will make no
representation about the desirability of the proposed plan of finance, the feasibility of the
projects financed or refinanced by the Securities, or any related matters.


Diversity of Practice: Consent to Unrelated Enægements


Because of the diversity of practice of our firm, members of our firm other than those
who serve you may be asked to represent other clients who have dealings with the City regarding
such matters as zoning, licensing, land division, real estate, property tax or other matters which
are unrelated to our bond counsel work. Ethical requirements sometimes dictate that we obtain
the City's consent to such situations even though our service to you is limited to the specialized


eB\4s1s4281.1







Ms. Tammy LaBorde
April26,2017
Page 3


area of bond counsel. We do not represent you in legal matters regularly, although we may be
called upon for special representation occasionally, and our bond counsel work does not usually
provide us information that will be disadvantageous to you in other representations. V/e do not
believe that such representations of others would adversely affect our relationship with you, and
we have found that local governments generally are agreeable to the type of unrelated
representation described above. V/e would like to have an understanding with you that the City
consents to our firm undertaking representations of this type. Your approval of this letter will
serve to confirm that the City has no objection to our representation of other clients who have
dealings with the City, unrelated to the borrowing and finance area or any other area in which we
have agreed to serve it. If you have any questions or would like to discuss this consent further,
please call us.


We also want to advise you that from time to time we represent underwriters and
purchasers of municipal obligations, as well as other bond market participants. In past
transactions or matters that are not related to the issuance of the Securities and our role as bond
counsel, we may have served as counsel to the financial institution that has or will underwrite,
purchase or place the Securities or that is serving as the City's financial advisor, We may also be
asked to represent financial institutions and other market participants, including the underwriter,
purchaser or placement agent of the Securities or the City's financial advisor, in future
transactions or matters that are not related to the issuance of the Securities or our role as bond
counsel. By engaging our services under the terms of this letter, the City consents to our firm
undertaking representations of this type.


A form of our opinion and a form of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate (which we may
prepare) may be included in the Offrcial Statement or other disclosure document for the
Securities. However, as bond counsel, we will not assume or undertake responsibility for the
preparation of an Official Statement or other disclosure document with respect to the Securities,
nor are we responsible for performing an independent investigation to determine the accuracy,
completeness or sufficiency of any such document. If an Official Statement or other disclosure
document is prepared and adopted or approved by the City, we will either prepare or review any
description therein of: (i) Wisconsin and federal law pertinent to the validity of the Securities
and the tax treatment of interest paid thereon and (ii) our opinion.


Fees


Based upon: (i) our current understanding of the terms, structure, size and schedule of
the financing, (ii) the duties we will undertake pursuant to this letter, (iii) the time we anticipate
devoting to the financing, and (iv) the responsibilities we assume, we estimate that our fee will
be $11,995, including all out-of-pocket expenses. Such fee and expenses may vary: (i) if the
principal amount of Securities actually issued differs signif,rcantly from the amount stated above,
(ii) if material changes in the structure of the financing occur, or (iii) if unusual or unforeseen


eB\4s1s4zsr-. 1







Ms. Tammy LaBorde
April26,2017
Page 4


circumstances arise which require a significant increase in our time, expenses or responsibility.
Our fees and expenses may increase if the Securities are insured by a municipal bond insurance
company, as municipal bond insurance companies require additional opinions and documents. If
at any time we believe that circumstances require an adjustment of our original fee estimate, we
will consult with you. It is our understanding that our fee will be paid out of proceeds of the
Securities at Closing.


If, for any reason, the financing is not consummated or is completed without the rendition
of our opinion as bond counsel, we will expect to be compensated at our normal hourly rates for
time actually spent, plus out-of-pocket expenses. Our fee is usually paid either at the Closing out
of proceeds of the Securities or pursuant to a statement rendered shortly thereafter. V/e
customarily do not submit any statement until the Closing unless there is a substantial delay in
completing the financing.


Limited Liabilit)¡ Partnership


Our firm is a limited liability partnership ("LLP"). Because we are an LLP, no partner of
the firm has personal liability for any debts or liabilities of the firm except as otherwise required
by law, and except that each partner can be personally liable for his or her own malpractice and
for the malpractice of persons acting under his or her actual supervision and control. As an LLP
we are required by our code of professional conduct to carry at least $10,000,000 of malpractice
insurance; currently, we carry coverage with limits substantially in excess of that amount. Please


call me if you have any questions about our status as a limited liability partnership.


Conclusion and Request for Signed Copy


If the foregoing terms of this engagement are acceptable to you, please so indicate by
retuming a copy of this letter dated and signed by an appropriate officer, retaining the original
for your files. If we do not hear from you within thirty (30) days, we will assume that these
terms are acceptable to you, but we would prefer to receive a signed copy of this letter from you,


oB\451547s1.1







Ms. Tammy LaBorde
April26,2017
Page 5


BGL:TAB:meg
#870109.00035
cc: Mayor Donna L. Olson (via email)


Ms. Lana Kropf (via email)
Ms. Lisa Aide (via email)
Mr. Joseph Murray (via email)
Ms. Christine Hogan (via email)
Ms. Grethe Bornhoft (via email)
Ms. Tracy Berrones (via email)


We are looking forward to working with you and the City in this regard.


Very truly yours,


BRADY LLP


Accepted and Approved:


CITY OF STOUGHTON


By:


Its
Title


Date:


eB\4s1s4781.1







U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


CREDIT OPINION
3 May 2017


New Issue


Contacts


Daniel Simpson 312-706-9965
Analyst
dan.simpson@moodys.com


Tatiana Killen 312-706-9972
AVP-Analyst
tatiana.killen@moodys.com


City of Stoughton, WI
New Issue - Moody's Assigns Aa2 to City of Stoughton, WI's
GO Notes, Series 2017A


Summary Rating Rationale
Moody's Investors Service has assigned an Aa2 rating to the City of Stoughton, WI's $7.7
million General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A. Concurrently, Moody's maintains
the Aa2 rating on the city's outstanding general obligation unlimited tax (GOULT) debt.
Following the sale, the city will have $24 million of long-term GOULT debt and $4.8 million
of short-term notes outstanding.


The Aa2 rating reflects the city's moderately-sized tax base located near the City of Madison
(Aaa stable); stable financial position supported by healthy operating reserves; above average
debt burden and modest pension burden.


Credit Strengths


» Economic ties to the Madison metropolitan area


» Healthy operating reserves relative to budget


» Modest pension burden


Credit Challenges


» Above average debt burden


Rating Outlook
Outlooks are not usually assigned to local government credits with this amount of debt.


Factors that Could Lead to an Upgrade


» Significant expansion of the tax base and improvement in socioeconomic profile


» Reduction in debt burden


Factors that Could Lead to a Downgrade


» Sustained contraction of the city's tax base and weakening of socioeconomic profile


» Narrowing of operating reserves relative to budget


» Growth in the city's elevated debt or pension burdens



https://www.surveygizmo.com/s3/1133212/Rate-this-research?pubid=PBM_1070612

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Madison-City-of-WI-credit-rating-600003239

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Madison-City-of-WI-credit-rating-600003239





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Key Indicators


Exhibit 1


Stoughton (City of) WI 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015


Economy/Tax Base


Total Full Value ($000)  $        963,481  $         918,271  $        894,126  $         913,081  $        954,262 


Full Value Per Capita  $           76,110  $           72,333  $          69,996  $          70,858  $           73,541 


Median Family Income (% of US Median) 117.5% 115.6% 116.6% 117.1% 113.2%


Finances


Operating Revenue ($000)  $           10,785  $           11,834  $           10,871  $            11,316  $            11,737 


Fund Balance as a % of Revenues 30.5% 30.8% 36.6% 36.8% 37.8%


Cash Balance as a % of Revenues 23.3% 25.5% 27.8% 30.4% 29.8%


Debt/Pensions


Net Direct Debt ($000)  $           17,525  $           18,163  $           17,525  $           18,010  $           21,946 


Net Direct Debt / Operating Revenues (x) 1.6x 1.5x 1.6x 1.6x 1.9x


Net Direct Debt / Full Value (%) 1.8% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.3%


Moody's - adjusted Net Pension Liability (3-yr average) to Revenues (x) N/A 0.3x 0.4x 0.6x 0.8x


Moody's - adjusted Net Pension Liability (3-yr average) to Full Value (%) N/A 0.4% 0.5% 0.7% 0.9%


Post-sale the city's net direct debt will total $28.9 million or 2.9% of full value and 2.5 times fiscal 2015 operating revenues. Current total full value is $1 billion.
Source: City's Audited Financial Statements, Moody's Investors Service, Inc., U.S. Census Bureau


Recent Developments
Since our last report dated April 21, 2016, the city has released its audited financial statements for fiscal 2015, which closed on
December 31st. Fiscal 2015 results reflected a General Fund surplus of $472,000, increasing the available General Fund balance to $4.3
million, or a healthy 35% of General Fund revenues. Additionally, the city's tax base has increased by 4.9% to $1 billion in tax year
2016.


Detailed Rating Considerations
Economy and Tax Base: Moderately Sized, Rebounding Tax Base Near Madison
We expect the city's tax base will continue to grow over the near-term given its proximity to the economically strong Madison
metropolitan area and ongoing development. Located in southern Dane County (Aa1 stable), the city encompasses an area of 12
square miles and lies 15 miles southeast of the City of Madison. The city is comprised primarily of residential property, which makes
up approximately 78% of the city's 2016 full valuation, followed by commercial property at 18%. Fully valued at $1 billion, the city's
tax base declined steadily from 2009 through 2013, primarily due to softening home values. In 2014, this trend reversed due to new
construction growth, returning the city's tax base to its peak in 2008 of $1 billion.


While the city's tax base is mostly comprised of residential property, the city does have some key employers. Stoughton Trailers,
the city's largest taxpayer, accounted for 1.1% of 2016 full valuation and is the city's largest employer with over 650 employees.
Management reports that Stoughton Trailers has been expanding and adding more shifts to its operations. The city's other large
taxpayers are in non-manufacturing commercial, retail, and health care sectors. Numerous and diverse employment opportunities are
available in the broader Madison metropolitan area, which have led to the city's strong population growth and low unemployment
rate. After significant 40.6% population growth from 1990 to 2000, growth has moderated to 2.1% between 2000 and 2010. The
current population is estimated at 13,000. Resident median family income is currently estimated at 113% of the nation. Dane County's
February 2017 unemployment rate of 3.1% was below the state and national rates of 4.5% and 4.9%, respectively.


Financial Operations and Reserves: Stable Financial Profile Supported By Healthy Reserves
The city's sound financial operations are expected to remain stable given healthy reserves and management's conservative financial
practices. The city has posted operating surpluses since fiscal 2009 increasing its available General Fund balance to $4.3 million, or a


This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on
www.moodys.com for the most updated credit rating action information and rating history.


2          3 May 2017 City of Stoughton, WI: New Issue - Moody's Assigns Aa2 to City of Stoughton, WI's GO Notes, Series 2017A



https://www.moodys.com/research/City-of-Stoughton-WI-New-Issue-Moodys-Assigns-Aa2-to-New-Issue--PBM_1024078

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Dane-County-of-WI-credit-rating-600026751





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


healthy 35% of General Fund revenues at fiscal year end 2015. The unassigned General Fund balance equaled 26% of revenues, which
is in excess of the city's policy to maintain unassigned reserves between 15% and 20% of General Fund revenues. Across the city's
major operating funds (General and Debt Service Funds), the city posted a $369,000 surplus in fiscal 2015, increasing the available
operating fund balance to $4.4 million, or a healthy 38% of operating fund revenues. Although audited financial results are not yet
available for fiscal 2016, officials report that the General Fund will likely post a $150,000 surplus driven by expenditure controls. For
fiscal 2017, the city adopted a balanced budget and presently has no plans to utilize reserves.


The majority of the city's operating fund revenues are derived from property taxes, comprising 65% of fiscal 2015 operating fund
revenues, followed by state aid and charges for services at 14% and 12%, respectively. The General Fund relies on annual PILOT
payments from the city's utility systems, the amounts of which are based on the net assets of the utilities. Historically, the city has
transferred between $400,000 and $760,000 annually, including $751,000 in fiscal 2015 from the water and electric utility systems,
which accounted for 6.4% of 2015 General Fund revenues. The utility systems are expected to remain self-supporting while providing
annual transfers to the General Fund.


LIQUIDITY


The city's fiscal 2015 operating fund net cash totaled $3.5 million or a healthy 30% of operating fund revenues.


Debt and Pensions: Above Average Debt Burden and Modest Pension Burden
Inclusive of the current offering, at 2.9% of full value and 2.5 times fiscal 2016 operating fund revenues, the city's debt burden is
somewhat elevated relative to its tax base and operating budget. Included in the net direct debt figure is $4.8 million in short term
debt that the city is planning to redeem with GO debt in August of 2018. Debt service payments as a percentage of expenses are high
at 23.6% of 2015 operating expenses.


While the city's debt burden is above average, its pension burden is modest. The Moody's three year average adjusted net pension
liability (ANPL), our measure of pension burden, was $14.2 million, or 1.0% of full value and 0.8 times fiscal 2015 operating revenues.
The city's employer contributions to WRS were $426,000, or modest 4% of fiscal 2015 operating fund revenues. Total fixed costs,
consisting of debt service and pension contributions, in fiscal 2015 were 28% of operating revenues.


DEBT STRUCTURE


All of the city's debt is fixed rate. Excluding the city's outstanding short-term notes, the city will retire 94% of its outstanding long-term
GOULT debt within 10 years.


DEBT-RELATED DERIVATIVES


The city is not a party to any interest rate swap or derivative agreements.


PENSIONS AND OPEB


The city participates in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a statewide cost-sharing plan. Moody's Adjusted net pension liability
(ANPL) for Stoughton, under our methodology for adjusting reported pension data, was $14.2 million in fiscal 2015, a 37% increase
from fiscal 2014 ANPL of $10.4 million. The increase reflects various factors, including a plan asset underperformance relative to plan
assumptions, and the decline in the Citi Pension Liability Index rate, which is the discount rate used to calculate the ANPL. Despite the
increase in ANPL, Stoughton's ANPL remains modest at just 0.8 times the city's fiscal 2015 operating revenues and 0.95% of the city's
tax base.


Moody's ANPL figure reflects the use of the Citi Pension Liability Index rate to value liabilities. The ANPL reflects the allocation of WRS
liabilities to participating employers, which is a required reporting standard under GASB effective fiscal 2015. The ANPL is not intended
to replace Stoughton's reported liability information but is used to enhance comparability with other rated entities.


Management and Governance: Moderate Institutional Framework
Wisconsin cities have an Institutional Framework score of A, which is moderate compared to the nation. Institutional Framework
scores measure a sector's legal ability to increase revenues and decrease expenditures. The sector's major revenue source, property
tax revenue, is subject to a cap that restricts cities from increasing their operating property tax levies except to capture amounts
represented by net new construction growth. Revenues and expenditures tend to be predictable. Across the sector, fixed and mandated


3          3 May 2017 City of Stoughton, WI: New Issue - Moody's Assigns Aa2 to City of Stoughton, WI's GO Notes, Series 2017A







MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


costs are generally high. Expenditures are somewhat flexible, as collective bargaining is allowed for public safety employees but is
curbed for non-public safety employees.


Legal Security
The city's GOULT debt, including the Series 2017A notes, are secured by the city's full faith and credit pledge and supported by a direct
tax levy on all taxable property within the city without limitation as to rate or amount.


Use of Proceeds
The Series 2017A note proceeds will be used to finance infrastructure improvements within the city.


Obligor Profile
The City of Stoughton is located in southeastern Wisconsin (Aa2 positive), approximately 15 miles southeast of the City of Madison
(Aaa stable). The city encompasses approximately 12 square miles in Dane County.


Methodology
The principal methodology used in this rating was US Local Government General Obligation Debt published in December 2016. Please
see the Rating Methodologies page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.


Ratings


Exhibit 2


Stoughton (City of) WI
Issue Rating
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series
2017A


Aa2


Rating Type Underlying LT
Sale Amount $7,660,000
Expected Sale Date 05/09/2017
Rating Description General Obligation


Source: Moody's Investors Service


4          3 May 2017 City of Stoughton, WI: New Issue - Moody's Assigns Aa2 to City of Stoughton, WI's GO Notes, Series 2017A



https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Wisconsin-State-of-credit-rating-800043271





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


© 2017 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved.


CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. AND ITS RATINGS AFFILIATES (“MIS”) ARE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT
RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY INCLUDE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE
RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY
MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS
DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S
OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE
MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT
PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE
SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION
AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR
PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.


MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR
RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS OR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT
YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER. ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW,
AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED
OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY
PERSON WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.


All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well
as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process or in preparing the Moody’s publications.


To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY’S.


To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.


NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH
RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.


Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation (“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any rating,
agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain
policies and procedures to address the independence of MIS’s ratings and rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and
rated entities, and between entities who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at
www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”


Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an opinion as
to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. It would be reckless
and inappropriate for retail investors to use MOODY’S credit ratings or publications when making an investment decision. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other
professional adviser.


Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered
with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.


MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees
ranging from JPY200,000 to approximately JPY350,000,000.


MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.


REPORT NUMBER 1070612


5          3 May 2017 City of Stoughton, WI: New Issue - Moody's Assigns Aa2 to City of Stoughton, WI's GO Notes, Series 2017A



http://www.moodys.com



		6a-R-64-2017- Resolution for Issuance and Sale of GO Notes.pdf

		6b-Stoughton Scope Series 2017A.pdf

		6c-Stoughton, WI - Moody's Credit Opinion for Series 2017A.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve this resolution, urging the Governor
and the Legislature to pass legislation to protect homeowners and main street businesses from having
even more of the property tax burden shifted to them.


Committee Action: Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-65-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


Whereas, home owners in Wisconsin already pay 70% of the total statewide property tax levy; and


Whereas, that disproportionate burden is about to get much worse unless the Legislature addresses tax
avoidance strategies that national chains like Walgreens, and big box retail establishments like Target
and Lowe’s are using across the country to gain dramatic reductions in their property tax bills at the
expense of homeowners and other taxpayers; and


Whereas, a carefully-orchestrated wave of 100s of lawsuits in Wisconsin is forcing assessors to slash
the market value of thriving national retail stores, shifting their tax burden to local mom and pop shops
and homeowners; and


Whereas, Walgreens and CVS stores in Wisconsin have argued in communities across the state that the
assessed value of their property for property tax purposes should be less than half of their actual sale
prices on the open market; and


Whereas, in many cases the courts have sided with Walgreens and CVS, requiring communities to
refund tax revenue back to the stores; and


Whereas, there are over 200 Walgreens stores located in Wisconsin’s cities and villages; and


Whereas, Target, Lowe’s, Meijer, Menards and other big box chains are using what is known as the
“Dark Store Theory” to argue that the assessed value of a new store in a thriving location should be
based on comparing their buildings to sales of vacant stores in abandoned locations from a different
market segment; and


Whereas, the Republican-controlled Indiana state Legislature has on two occasions in the last two years
overwhelmingly passed legislation prohibiting assessors from valuing new big box stores the same as
nearby abandoned stores from a different market segment; and


Whereas, the Michigan state house overwhelmingly passed similar legislation in May of 2016.


Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton urges the
Governor and the Legislature to protect homeowners and main street businesses from having even more
of the property tax burden shifted to them by passing legislation clarifying that:







1. Leases are appropriately factored into the valuation of leased properties; and


2. When using the comparable sale method of valuation, assessors shall consider as comparable
only those sales within the same market segment exhibiting a similar highest and best use rather
than similarly sized but vacant properties in abandoned locations.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







Close Loopholes that Shift a Greater Property Tax Burden
from Commercial to Residential Homeowners


Whereas, home owners in Wisconsin already pay 70% of the total statewide property tax levy; and


Whereas, that disproportionate burden is about to get much worse unless the Legislature addresses tax
avoidance strategies that national chains like Walgreens, and big box retail establishments like Target and
Lowe’s are using across the country to gain dramatic reductions in their property tax bills at the expense of
homeowners and other taxpayers; and


Whereas, a carefully-orchestrated wave of 100s of lawsuits in Wisconsin is forcing assessors to slash the
market value of thriving national retail stores, shifting their tax burden to local mom and pop shops and
homeowners; and


Whereas, Walgreens and CVS stores in Wisconsin have argued in communities across the state that the
assessed value of their property for property tax purposes should be less than half of their actual sale prices on
the open market; and


Whereas, in many cases the courts have sided with Walgreens and CVS, requiring communities to refund tax
revenue back to the stores; and


Whereas, there are over 200 Walgreens stores located in Wisconsin’s cities and villages; and


Whereas, Target, Lowe’s, Meijer, Menards and other big box chains are using what is known as the “Dark
Store Theory” to argue that the assessed value of a new store in a thriving location should be based on
comparing their buildings to sales of vacant stores in abandoned locations from a different market segment;
and


Whereas, the Republican-controlled Indiana state Legislature has on two occasions in the last two years
overwhelmingly passed legislation prohibiting assessors from valuing new big box stores the same as nearby
abandoned stores from a different market segment; and


Whereas, the Michigan state house overwhelmingly passed similar legislation in May of 2016.


Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton urges the Governor and
the Legislature to protect homeowners and main street businesses from having even more of the property tax
burden shifted to them by passing legislation clarifying that:


1. Leases are appropriately factored into the valuation of leased properties; and


2. When using the comparable sale method of valuation, assessors shall consider as comparable only
those sales within the same market segment exhibiting a similar highest and best use rather than
similarly sized but vacant properties in abandoned locations.









































































		7a-R-65-2017- Dark Store Legislation Resolution.pdf

		7b-Dark Store Sample Resolution.pdf

		7c- Dark Store Informational Packet.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution to Approve the 2017 Section 5310 Subrecipient Agreement


Between the City of Madison and the City of Stoughton


Committee Action: Finance Committee meets May 9, 2017


Fiscal Impact: $13,400


File Number: R- 66 -2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton in 2016 made application for a grant to fund the purchase of two
minivans to replace two existing minivans to transport seniors and people with disabilities in the city
which were to have been replaced prior to the end of 2016, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton currently operates the shared-ride taxi system which has
approximately 30,000 rides per year taken on the taxi system with the majority of those rides for seniors
and people with disabilities, and


WHEREAS the shared-ride taxi system is important to the community and is used for important trips to
and from work, shopping, entertainment, medical appointments, and education, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton was notified that the municipality would be required to fund twenty
(20%) percent of the cost of the two minivans or $13,400 and the grant would cover eighty (80%) of the
cost or $53,600 for a total purchase cost of $67,000, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton received confirmation that the funds had been released by the
federal government to the City of Madison and also received the 2017 Section 5310 Subrecipient
Agreement from the City of Madison who will be administering the grant program, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton authorizes the proper city
officials to enter into the 2017 Section 5310 Subrecipient Agreement between the City of Madison and
the City of Stoughton subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







2017 SECTION 5310 SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE 


 CITY OF MADISON 
 AND  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
This Contract, made by and between City of Stoughton, hereinafter referred to as  “SUBRECIPIENT” and the City of 
Madison, hereinafter referred to as “CITY,” shall become effective upon execution by the Mayor of Madison on behalf of the 
City. 
 
WHEREAS, CITY is authorized by Title 49 U.S.C Chapter 53 Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 
with Disabilities Program to apply for and receive Federal grants on behalf of eligible recipients; and 
 
WHEREAS, SUBRECIPIENT has requested funds to assist in financing capital purchases; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITY agrees to pass through financial assistance with funds made available under Section 49 USC 5310 
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and individuals with Disabilities Program, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Contract; and 
 
In consideration of the reciprocal promises expressed in this Contract, CITY and SUBRECIPIENT agree as follows: 
 


Article I: City of Madison Payment 
 


A. Payment under the terms of this Contract is made pursuant to Title 49 U.S.C Chapter 53 (Section 5310) which 
specify that capital assistance grants may equal 80% of the total capital costs. 


 
CITY agrees to pay SUBRECIPIENT Fifty-Three Thousand and Six Hundred Dollars ($53,600) or 80% of the 
purchase price, whichever is less, of the items specified in Attachment A, Project Description and Budget.  The 
costs eligible for capital assistance grant payments shall be limited to those specified in Attachment A, Project 
Description and Budget. 
 


B. CITY shall make payment to SUBRECIPIENT upon receipt of invoices prepared by the manufacturer or dealer 
showing the actual costs of the purchased item, i.e., rolling stock. 


 
C. If CITY’s audit establishes that payment to SUBRECIPIENT under the terms of this Contract has exceeded the 


allowable maximum as defined in Article I.B., SUBRECIPIENT shall refund to CITY upon demand a sum 
sufficient to reduce the payment to comply with Article I.B. of this Contract.  


 
D. Consistent with Articles I.B. and notwithstanding other provision of this contract, CITY may reduce the 


payments otherwise due under paragraph B of this article. 
 


Article II: Responsibility of SUBRECIPIENT 
 


A. The purchase of all equipment financed pursuant to this Contract shall be undertaken by SUBRECIPIENT and 
shall be in accordance with applicable State and Federal laws and regulations.  The Master Agreement between 
CITY and the Federal Transit Administration contains all Federally required clauses that should be included in 
this Contract between CITY and SUBRECIPIENT and said Master Agreement is therefore include in this 
Contract by reference.   In addition, SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all procurement requirements in FTA 
Circular 4220.1F when procuring property and services to be paid for under this Contract. 


 
B. SUBRECIPIENT shall complete all purchases included in this Contract by December 31, 2017.  If 


SUBRECIPIENT fails to complete a given purchase by the date specified, CITY shall take necessary actions to 
withdraw any remaining committed funds in the Contract at that time.  The uncommitted funds may be 
reassigned or surrendered to the federal government. 


 







C. Title to project equipment shall be in the name of the SUBRECIPIENT, subject to the restrictions on use and 
disposition of the project equipment and rolling stock set forth herein.  The City of Madison-Metro Transit shall 
be registered as Lien Holder #1 and copies of title documents must be filed with City of Madison-Metro Transit 
as soon as possible.   


 
D. SUBRECIPIENT may not execute any transfer of title, lease, lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, contract, 


grant anticipation note, alienation, or other obligation that in any way affects the Federal interest in any project  
equipment or rolling stock nor may SUBRECIPIENT obligate itself, in any other manner, to any third party 
with respect to project equipment or rolling stock, unless such transfer of title, lease, lien pledge, mortgage 
encumbrance, contract, grant anticipation note, alienation, or other obligation is expressly authorized in writing 
by CITY; nor may SUBRECIPIENT, by any act or omission, adversely affect the Federal interest or impair 
SUBRECIPIENT’s continuing control over the use of project rolling stock. 


 
E. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that the project equipment and rolling stock shall only be used for the provision of 


transportation service to the general public and rolling stock shall be clearly marked for public use.  
SUBRECIPIENT shall keep satisfactory records with regard to the use of the equipment and rolling stock and 
submit to CITY upon request such information as may be required to assure compliance with this section.  
Project equipment and rolling stock shall be operated only within the area authorized by the FTA under 
applicable grant statutes and regulations for the duration of its useful life.  If during the useful life, the project 
equipment and rolling stock is not used in this manner or is withdrawn from transportation service, 
SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify CITY and request disposition instructions. 


 
F. SUBRECIPIENT shall perform preventive maintenance on the equipment and rolling stock purchased with 


FTA funds, including ADA accessibility equipment, at a level no less than the manufacturer’s recommended 
specifications.  Adequate records of preventive maintenance on each piece of equipment and rolling stock shall 
be maintained by SUBRECIPIENT.  The equipment and rolling stock shall be properly maintained at all times.  
CITY shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections and reviews, for the purpose of confirming that proper 
maintenance policies and procedures are being followed. 


 
G. SUBRECIPIENT shall make available the equipment and rolling stock to CITY upon demand for the purpose 


of an annual verification or other inspections deemed necessary by CITY. 
 


H. SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify CITY in all cases where project equipment or rolling stock is used in 
a manner substantially different from that as described in the application.  SUBRECIPIENT shall obtain prior 
written concurrence from CITY for any proposed sale of equipment and rolling stock, title transfer, or lease to 
another agency. 


 
I. SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain in amount and form satisfactory to CITY such insurance or self-insurance 


(including property, personal injury and collision coverage) as will be adequate to cover the current value of 
project equipment and rolling stock throughout the period of required use.   


 
J. CITY reserves the right to require SUBRECIPIENT to restore equipment and rolling stock or pay for damages 


to the equipment and rolling stock as a result of abuse or misuse of such capital items with SUBRECIPIENT’s 
knowledge and consent.  


 
K. CITY reserves the right, and SUBRECIPIENT shall allow CITY, to conduct periodic reviews of 


SUBRECIPIENT to ensure it is in compliance with FTA Circular 4220.1F; 49 CFR, Part 18.37; and 49 CFR 
18.42. 


 
Article III: Records and Audits 


 
A. SUBRECIPIENT shall have a single, organization-wide, financial and compliance audit performed by a 


qualified independent auditor if required to do so under Federal law and regulations.  (See Federal OMB 
Circular No. A-133 and the provisions of OMB A-133 Compliance Supplement dated March 2002.) 


 







B. This audit shall be performed in accordance with Federal circular A-133 issued by the Federal Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB), its Compliance supplement, and City of Madison single audit guidelines. 


 
C. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain appropriate accounts and records relating to this transportation project.  


Such accounts and records will be made available upon request to CITY for inspection and audit purposes. 
 
D. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide all reports requested by CITY including, but not limited to, financial 


statements and reports, reports and accounting of services rendered, and any other reports or documents 
requested. Financial and service reports shall be provided according to a schedule (when applicable) to be 
included in this Contract. Any other reports or documents shall be provided within five (5) working days after 
SUBRECIPIENT receives CITY's written requests, unless the parties agree in writing on a longer period. 
Payroll records and any other documents relating to the performance of services under the terms of this Contract 
shall be retained by SUBRECIPIENT for a period of three (3) years after completion of all work under this 
contract, in order to be available for audit by CITY or its designee.  


 
E. SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain intact and readily accessible all data, documents, reports, records, Contracts, 


and supporting materials relating to this Contract during the course of this Contract and for three (3) years after 
City makes final payments and all other pending matters are closed.  SUBRECIPIENT shall permit the 
authorized representations of CITY and/or WisDOT or its designee, as required by USDOT/FTA, and the 
Comptroller General of the United States to inspect all project work, materials, payrolls, and other data, and to 
audit the books, records, and accounts pertaining to this Contract.   


 
F. SUBRECIPIENT further agrees to include in all its contracts and subcontracts hereunder a provision to the 


effect that the contractor and subcontractor agrees to the requirements of the above paragraph.  The term 
"subcontractor" as used in this clause excludes subcontracts or purchase orders for public utility services at rates 
established for uniform applicability to the general public. 


 
G. The periods of access and examination described above, for records which relate to (1) litigation or the 


settlement of claims arising out of the performance of this Contract, and (2) costs and expenses of this Contract 
as to which exception has been taken by the Comptroller General or any of his/her duly authorized 
representatives, shall continue until such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions have been dispose of. 


 
Article I V :  Project Management 


 
A.  The Subrecipient agrees that its transit project will be that as described in Attachment A, and will be managed 


and operated in accordance with t h e  Project Management and Recipient Coordination Plan, which is made 
part of this Grant Agreement by reference. Modifications to Attachment A may be p r o p o s e d  by either the 
Subrecipient or Metro Transit. 


 
B. A request by the Subrecipient to modify the transit project from that described in Attachment A must be 


submitted in writing to Metro Transit in a manner prescribed by Metro Transit. 
 
C. If Metro Transit determines that a proposed modification  is a "substantive change" to the initial grant 


application, Metro Transit  shall  prepare  an  amendment   to  this  Grant Agreement   and  forward   it  to  the 
Subrecipient  for  execution.  The Subrecipient shall not implement a proposed "substantive change" to the 2017 
transit project until an appropriate amendment to this Grant Agreement has been executed by both the 
Subecipient and the Metro Transit. 


 
D. If Metro Transit determines that a proposed modification to the 2017 grant application is a "non-substantive 


change," Metro Transit shall authorize in writing the Subrecipient to implement the change, and a formal 
amendment to this Grant Agreement shall not be required. 


 
 
 
 
 







Article V: Assurance of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability 
 


SUBRECIPIENT, in accordance with 49 CFR Parts 27, 37, and 38, agrees that it will comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), the Rehabilitation Act and all U. S. Department of Transportation regulations relating to 
enforcement of each Act.  
 


Article VI:  City Terms and Conditions 
 


A. NON-DISCRIMINATION. 
In the performance of work under this Contract, the Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, marital status, age, color, sex, handicap, national origin or 
ancestry, income level or source of income, arrest record or conviction record, less than honorable discharge, 
physical appearance, sexual orientation, gender identity, political beliefs or student status. Contractor further agrees 
not to discriminate against any subcontractor or person who offers to subcontract on this Contract because of race, 
religion, color, age, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin. 


 
Article VII: FTA Terms and Conditions 


 
Federal Financial Assistance and Federal Changes:  80% of the total cost of the deliverables described in the Contract will be 
financed with Federal monies from the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended. 


 
A. No Government Obligation to Third Parties.   SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply the U.S. 


Department of Transportation regulations relating to contractual liability of the Federal Government to third 
parties as follows: 


 
CITY and SUBRECIPIENT acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal 
Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying Contract, absent the express consent 
by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and shall not be subject to 
any obligations or liabilities to CITY, SUBRECIPIENT, or any other party (whether or not party to the 
Contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying Contract.   


 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provide by FTA.  It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify 
the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 


 
B. Incorporation of FTA Terms.  The provisions in this section include, in part, certain standard terms and 


conditions required by USDOT/FTA, whether or not expressly set forth in these provisions.  All contractual 
provisions required by USDOT/FTA, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F or any subsequent amendments are 
hereby incorporated by reference.  Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all USDOT/FTA mandated 
terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract.  
SUBRECIPIENT shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with CITY requests, 
which would cause CITY to be in violation of the USDOT/FTA terms and conditions. 


 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply at all times with 49 CFR Part 18; U. S. Department of 
Transportation regulations relating to applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including 
without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement Form FTA MA (23) dated October 
2016,  between CITY and U. S. Department of Transportation/Federal Transit Administration (USDOT/FTA), 
as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract.  SUBRECIPIENT’s 
failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.   
 
These grant agreements and FTA Circular 4220.1F, "Third Party Contracting," are available for examination at 
the Office of the Transit Finance Manager, 1245 East Washington Avenue, Suite 201, Madison, WI  53703-
3052, 608/267-8766 (voice), 608/267-8778 (fax) or wblock@cityofmadison.com.  
 







C. Compliance with Local, State and Federal Laws.  The services and/or equipment provided shall be in 
compliance with all requirements of the laws and regulations of CITY of Madison, the State of Wisconsin and 
the United States of America. 


 
D. Ethics:   
 


1. Prohibited Interest:  SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that no employee, officer, or agent during his or her 
tenure or one (1) year thereafter has any interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof.  
Such a conflict would also arise when any employee, officer or agent's family member or partner or 
organization that employs, or is about to employ any of the above, has a financial or other interest in this 
Contract or the proceeds thereof. 


 
2. Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress:  SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that he or she has not 


offered or given to any member of, or delegate to the Congress of the United States, any share or part of 
this Contract or to any benefit arising therefrom. 


 
3. Covenant Against Gratuities: SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that he or she has not offered or given gratuities 


(in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) to any employee, officer or agent of CITY with a view 
toward securing favorable treatment in the awarding, amending, or evaluating performance of the Contract. 


 
4. Collusive Agreements: SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that the Contract submitted is not a product of 


collusion with any other Recipient and no effort has been made to fix any overhead, profit or cost element 
of any Contract price.   


 
5. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements and Related Acts.:    


 
a.   SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 


as amended, 31 U.S.C. § § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 
49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying 
Contract, SUBRECIPIENT certifies 41or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has 
made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA 
assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may 
be applicable, SUBRECIPIENT further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 
fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves 
the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on 
SUBRECIPIENT to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 


 
b.   SUBRECIPIENT also understands and acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 


fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under 
a Contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right 
to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on SUBRECIPIENT, to the 
extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 


 
E.  Civil Rights - SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with and ensures the compliance of all contractors and 


subcontractors with the following requirements: 
 


1. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, 
section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §  6102, section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability.  In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 
to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA 
may issue. 


 







2. Equal Employment Opportunity - The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the 
underlying Contract: 


 
a.    Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as 


amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 
comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor 
(U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 
11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and 
with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the 
future affect activities undertaken in the course of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, or sex.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment 
or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with 
any implementing requirements FTA may issue.  


 
b. Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 


amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 621 through 634 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for 
reason of age. In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with any implementing requirements 
FTA may issue and with implementing regulations of the U.S. Equal Opportunity Commission (U.S. 
EEOC), 29 CFR, Part 1625. 


 
c.    Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 


U.S.C. § 12112, SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons 
with disabilities. In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with any implementing requirements 
FTA may issue. 


 
d.    Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  


In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by SUBRECIPIENT for work to 
be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each 
potential contractor, subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by SUBRECIPIENT of 
SUBRECIPIENT's obligations under this Contract and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination 
on the grounds of race, color, creed, age, disability, sex or national origin. 


 
e.     Information and Reports:  SUBRECIPIENT shall provide all information and reports required by the 


Federal Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by CITY or the USDOT-
/FTA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions.  Where 
any information required of a Recipient is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 
furnish this information, SUBRECIPIENT shall so certify to CITY or to the USDOT/FTA, as appro-
priate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 


 
f. Incorporation of Provisions:  SUBRECIPIENT shall include the provisions of this entire section 


entitled “Civil Rights” in every contract and subcontract, including procurements of materials and 
leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.  
SUBRECIPIENT shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as CITY or the 
USDOT/FTA may direct as a means of enforcing non-compliance. Provided, however, that in the 
event a Recipient becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation with a contractor, subcontractor 
or supplier as a result of such direction, SUBRECIPIENT may request CITY to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interest of the United States. 







 
g.   Penalties:  Failure by SUBRECIPIENT to carry out these requirements is a material breach of the 


Contract, which may result in the withholding of payments to SUBRECIPIENT under the contract 
until SUBRECIPIENT complies; cancellation, termination or suspension of this Contract; ineligibility 
for future Contracts; or such other remedy as CITY or USDOT/FTA deems appropriate in order to 
assure compliance with applicable civil rights standards as required by law.  


 
F. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise:     
 


The requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 and CITY's USDOT/FTA approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(D.B.E.) Program are incorporated in this Contract by reference.  
 
The Contractor shall maintain compliance with “DBE Approval Certification” CER 8.7 throughout the period 
of Contract performance. The requirements of § 1101(b) of SAFETEA – LU, Title  23 U.S.C. § 101, note, 49 
C.F.R. Part 26 and the City's USDOT/FTA approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (D.B.E.) Program are 
incorporated in this Contract by reference.  
 


 
1. Policy.  It is the policy of the U.S. Department of Transportation that disadvantaged business enterprises as 


defined in 49 CFR Part 26 shall have the opportunity to participate in the performance of Contracts 
financed in whole or in part with Federal funds under this Agreement.  Consequently, the DBE 
requirements of 49 CFR § 18.36(e) Contracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women’s Business 
Enterprise and Labor Surplus Area Firms apply to this Contract. 


 
2. Obligation.  SUBRECIPIENT and its contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of 


race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract.  SUBRECIPIENT shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 in the award and administration of any subcontracts entered 
into in its performance of this contract.  Each subcontract the Contractor signs with a Subcontractor must 
include the assurance in this paragraph and the penalty provision in Paragraph c below. 


 
3. Penalty.  Failure by SUBRECIPIENT or its contractor and subcontractor to carry out these requirements is 


a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other 
remedy as CITY deems appropriate. 


 
G. Labor Protection:  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with applicable transit employee protective 


requirements, terms, and conditions determined by the U. S. Secretary of Labor to be fair and equitable to 
protect the interests of employees employed under this contract and to meet the employee protective 
requirements as of 49 U.S.C.  A5333(b), and U. S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments 
thereto.  


 
H. Government-wide Debarment & Suspension Non-procurement:  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with 


and shall assure subcontractors compliance with the requirements of Executive Order 12549 and 12689, 
"Debarment and Suspension," 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, and U.S. DOT regulations, “Nonprocurement Suspension 
and Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. Part 1200, which adopt and supplement the provisions of U.S. Office of Management 
and Budget FTA Master Agreement, which prohibits FTA Recipients and Subcontractors from knowingly 
contracting for goods and services from organizations that have been suspended or debarred from receiving 
Federally-assisted contracts.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to, and assures that its sub contractors will, review the 
“Excluded Parties Listing System” at http://www.sam.gov before entering into any third party contract or 
subagreement. SUBRECIPIENT shall submit the certification attached as Attachment B with this Contract.  


 
Furthermore, SUBRECIPIENT agrees, to provide and to require subcontractors at every tier to agree to provide, 
CITY with immediate written notice if it learns that its submitted certification, which was not erroneous when 
submitted, has become erroneous by reasons of changed circumstances.  Written notice shall be sent to Wayne 
Block, Transit Finance Manager, 1245 East Washington Avenue, Suite 201, Madison, WI  53703-3052. 


 
 







I. Environmental Requirements: 
 


1. Recycled Products:  SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply with 42 USC § 6962 et seq., and 40 CFR 
Part 247, and Executive Order 12873; U. S. Department of Transportation regulations relating to recycled 
products.  This requirement applies to all Contracts designated by the EPA, when CITY or Subrecipient 
procures $10,000 or more of such items in the fiscal year, or when the cost of such items purchased during 
the previous fiscal year were $10,000, using federal funds. 


 
Violations shall be reported to USDOT/FTA and to the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Assistant Administrator for Enforcement. 


 
      J.         Pre-award and Post Delivery Audit Requirements 


 
1.  CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 


 
SUBRECIPIENT and selected Contractor shall comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j) and FTA's implementing 
regulation at 49 C.F.R. Part 663 and Part 661 and shall submit all necessary certifications and 
documentation, as required, with its Offer and prior to vehicle acceptance, including but not limited to 
the following:  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that to the extent the provisions of 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5323(j), as amended by SAFETEA-LU conflict with FTA’s implementing regulations as currently 
promulgated, the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j), as amended, prevail. 


 
2.  FEDERAL MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY STANDARDS (FMVSS) 


 
SUBRECIPIENT shall submit 1) manufacturer's FMVSS self-certification sticker information that the 
vehicle complies with relevant FMVSS at the time of award and at the time of the post award audit, or 
2) manufacturer's certified statement that the contracted buses will not be subject to FMVSS regulations. 


 
3.  PURCHASERS REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 


 
SUBRECIPIENT and selected Contractor shall submit all documentation requested by CITY in order to 
satisfy the following Federal requirements in 49 CFR 663. 


 
a. Pre-Award Purchasers Requirements Certification 


The Pre-Award purchaser’s requirements certification is a certification that SUBRECIPIENT keeps on 
file that: 


 
(1) The rolling stock SUBRECIPIENT is contracting for is the same product described in 


SUBRECIPIENT’s solicitation specifications. 
 


(2) SUBRECIPIENT and (if selected) Contractor is the responsible manufacturer with the capability 
to produce a vehicle that meets the Procuring Agency’s specifications set forth in the Procuring 
Agency solicitation. 


 
b.  Post-Award Purchasers Requirements Certification 


 
The Post-Award purchaser’s requirements certification is a certification SUBRECIPIENT keeps on file 
that: 


 
(1) Except for procurements covered under paragraph (c), in this section, a resident inspector (other 


than an agent or employee of the manufacturer) was at the manufacturing site throughout the 
period of manufacture of the rolling stock to be purchased and monitored and completed a report 
on the manufacture of such rolling stock.  Such a report, at a minimum, shall (1) provide accurate 
records of all vehicle construction activities; and  


 
(2)  Address how the construction and operation of the vehicles fulfills the contract specifications. 







 
(3) After reviewing the report required under paragraph (a), of this section, and visually inspecting 


and road testing the delivered vehicles, the vehicles meet the contract specifications. 
 


c.  For procurements of ten or fewer buses, or any number of primary manufacturer standard production 
and unmodified vans, after visually inspecting and road testing the vehicles, the vehicles meet the 
contract   specifications.  


 
The selected contractor shall submit all Post Award Audit Documents, as listed herein, to 
SUBRECIPIENT prior to the vehicle acceptance of each annual shipment.  Failure to provide these 
documents, within this timeframe, may result in a reasonable retention amount being withheld by the 
Procuring Agency in subsequent shipments, to insure satisfactory performance with this requirement.   


  
Article VIII: Safety Requirements 


 
All materials, equipment, and supplies acquired through this Contract by SUBRECIPIENT, must comply fully with all 
safety requirements as set forth in law or rule by the State of Wisconsin and all applicable OSHA Standards. 


 
Article IX: Termination 


 
A.        In the event Subrecipient shall default in any of the covenants, agreements, commitments, or conditions 


herein contained, and any such default shall continue unremedied for a period of ten (10) days after written 
notice thereof to Subrecipient, CITY may, at its option and in addition to all other rights and remedies which it 
may have at law or in equity against Subrecipient, including expressly the specific enforcement hereof, 
forthwith have the cumulative right to immediately terminate this contract and all rights of Subrecipient under 
this contract. 


 
B.        Notwithstanding paragraph A., above, CITY may in its sole discretion and without any reason terminate 


this agreement at any time by furnishing SUBRECIPIENT with ten (10) days' written notice of termination. In 
the event of termination under this subsection, CITY will pay for all work completed by SUBRECIPIENT and 
accepted by CITY  


 
Article X: Privacy Act 


 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions 
and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, SUBRECIPIENT 
agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before SUBRECIPIENT or its employees operate a 
system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. SUBRECIPIENT understands that the requirements of the 
Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and 
that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract. 
 
SUBRECIPIENT also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on 
behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 
 


Article XI: Attachments 
 
All attachments to this Contract are incorporated herein by annexation (Attachment A and B). 


  







 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands at Madison, Wisconsin. 
 
 
  SUBRECIPIENT 


        
  (Type or Print Name of Contracting Entity) 


  By:  
   (Signature) 


     
   (Print Name and Title of Person Signing) 


   Date:       
   
   
   
   CITY OF MADISON, WISCONSIN 


a municipal corporation 
    


   By:  
    Paul R. Soglin, Mayor 


     
  Date:  
 
Approved: 


  


     


  By:  
David P. Schmiedicke, Finance Director   Maribeth Witzel-Behl, City Clerk 


     
Date:   Date:  
   


Approved as to Form: 
   


Eric T. Veum, Risk Manager  Michael P. May, City Attorney 


Date:   Date:  
   


 
  







 
 


Attachment A 
 


2017 Section 5310 Capital Assistance Grant 
 


City of Stoughton 
 


The City of Stoughton offers a shared-ride taxi program open to the residents of Stoughton through a contract 
with a private taxi service provider. The City of Stoughton currently owns two accessible minivans; each will be 
retired at the end of 2016. About 30,000 rides per year are taken on the taxi system, the majority of whom are 
seniors or people with disabilities. The shared‐ride taxi system is important to the community and is used for 
important trips to and from work, shopping, entertainment, medical appointments, and education. 


 
 
 
Quantity   Item Description    Unit Price        Total Price 
 
     2               Accessible Min-Van    $67,000.            $67,000. 
 
           Subtotal A      $67,000. 
               


Federal Share (80%)         $53,600. 
 
 
 


 
 







Attachment B 
 


DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION   
 
Instructions for Certification: 
 
1. By signing this Contract, the prospective sub-grantee or sub-recipient is providing the signed certification set out 
below.  
 
2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation 
in this covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the 
certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or 
agency’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the prospective primary participant to 
furnish a certification shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. 
 
3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the 
department or agency determined to enter into this. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to which this 
proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have 
the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may 
contact the department or agency to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those 
regulations. 
 
6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction 
be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for 
debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by in writing by the department or agency entering into this 
transactions. 
 
7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction", provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all 
lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 
 
8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant agrees to review 
the “Excluded Parties Listing System” at http://www.sam.gov, before entering into any third party contract or 
subagreement. 
 
9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of system of records in order to render 
in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to 
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
10. Except for transactions authorized under Paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 
9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition 
to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for 
cause or default. 







DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION - PRIMARY- (continued) 
 
The prospective primary participant certifies, by submission of this Proposal, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that 
neither it nor its "principals," as defined in 2. C.F.R. Part 180.995: 
 
Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a 
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property. 
 
Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charges by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) 
with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (2) of this certification. 
 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, 
State, local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
If the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
primary participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal, and indicate that it has done so, by placing an "X" in the 
following space: ____.     
          
Furthermore, the Participant certifies that it will provide immediate written notice to CITY if, at any time during the 
course of the proposed contract, it learns that this certification was erroneous when submitted or has been erroneous by 
reason of changed circumstances. 
 
THE PARTICIPANT, CERTIFIES OR AFFIRMS THE TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF EACH 
STATEMENT OF ITS CERTIFICATION AND EXPLANATION, IF ANY. IN ADDITION, THE 
PARTICIPANT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 ET SEQ. 
APPLY TO THIS CERTIFICATION AND EXPLANATION, IF ANY. 
 
 
 
        ___________________________________________ 
        Signature and title of Authorized Official 
 
The undersigned chief legal counsel for City of Stoughton hereby certifies City of Stoughton has authority under state 
and local law to comply with the subject assurance and that the certification above has been legally made. 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
   Signature of Subrecipient’s Attorney 
 


_____________________________________________ 
   Date 
 


 







Subrecipient Service Area
Service Area 
Urban/Rural


Sub 
Type 1


Project 
Type Project Description/ALI


FTA 
Amount


Local 
Amount


Total 
Amount


Coordination Plan 
Page


Project 
Type 2


City of Madison ‐ Metro  Madison Area Urban DR Capital In‐Person Paratransit Eligibility Assessments  $75,600 $18,900 $94,500 34 14f


Section 5310 Program of Projects for the Madison Urbanized Area ‐ 2017


Category A Projects ‐ Certified as having met federal requirements and approved for funding.


1


City of Madison   Metro 
Transit


Madison Area Urban DR Capital In Person Paratransit Eligibility Assessments 
and Transit Orientation


$75,600 $18,900 $94,500 34 14f


Dane County DHS Dane County Rural LG Capital One‐Call Center, Mobility Training, and Bus 
Buddy Program


$112,100 $28,310 $140,410 32, 34, 37 14f


Dane County TIP Dane County Urban/Rural LG Capital Focused transportation for people with intel 
/ devel disabilities


$35,950 $9,590 $45,540 32, 34, 37 14f


Stoughton Stoughton Urban LG Capital Minivan ‐ Side Entry (5/1)
Minivan ‐ Rear Entry (4/2)


$53,600 $13,400 $67,000 33 14a
Minivan ‐ Rear Entry (4/2)


City of Madison ‐ Metro 
Transit


DR Grant Administration $27,500 $27,500 12


    Total $304,750 $70,200 $374,950


Category B Projects ‐ Pending federal requirements and/or pending approval for funding.


    Total $0 $0 $0


1 DR ‐ Direct Recipient, PNP ‐ Private Non‐Profit, LG ‐ Local Governmnet, PO ‐ Private Operator receiving indirect funds
2 Project type defined in FTA C 9070.1G:
    12 ‐ Administration expenses
    14a ‐ Rolling stock and related activities (meeting the 55% requirement)
    14b ‐ Passenger facilities (meeting the 55% requirement)
    14c ‐ Support facilities and equipment (meeting the 55% requirement)
    14d ‐ Lease of equipment (meeting the 55% requirement)
    14e ‐ Acquisition of transportation services under a contract, lease, or other arrangement, including user‐side subsidies (meeting the 55% requirement)
    14f ‐ Support for mobility management and coordination programs (meeting the 55% requirement)    14f   Support for mobility management and coordination programs (meeting the 55% requirement)
    15a ‐ Public transportation projects (capital and operating) planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities
    15b ‐ Public transportation projects that exceed the requirements of the ADA
    15c ‐ Public transportation projects that improve access to fixed route service and decrease reliance by individuals with disabilities on ADA complementary paratransit service
    15d ‐ Alternatives to public transportation that assist seniors and individuals with disabilities with transportation


All projects are within Dane County, Madison, WI; Wisconsin Congressional District 2; and consistent with the 2013 Coordinated Public Transit‐Human Services Transportation Plan for Dane County.


1







 2 


  







 3 


Section 5310 Program of Projects for the Madison Urbanized Area – 2016 
Project Descriptions 


 
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board 


 
Subrecipient:  Metro Transit 
Project: Paratransit Eligibility and Mobility Coordinator 
 
This project funds one full-time Paratransit Eligibility and Mobility Coordinator (PED & MC) staff 
position.  PED & MC duties include: conduct in-person ADA paratransit eligibility determinations (IPAs) 
and transit orientations (TOs); refer candidates for travel training (TTRs) to Dane County’s Bus Buddy 
program and follow up; and field work performing path-of-travel assessments (PTAs). 
 
Subrecipient:  Dane County Department of Human Services 
Project: One-Call Center, Mobility Training, and Bus Buddy Program 
 
The project has three components: 
 
1. The Call Center (CC) is staffed by certified mobility managers and provides information to callers 
about services covering all available transportation modes including public transit, human services 
transportation and volunteer driver programs, and ride-sharing.  Services provided by the CC include 
personalized identification of transportation options based on program-specific eligibility criteria; 
introduction and detailed referral to public transit, individual and group ride services; eligibility 
determination and ride authorization for specialized transportation; enrollment in mobility training 
programs; and follow-up assistance in maintaining mobility.   
 
2. The Travel Training (TT) program is staffed by certified occupational therapists to provide instruction 
in the skills necessary to access fixed-route transit service to individuals who are currently or potentially 
eligible for paratransit.  If the client successfully migrates a minimum number of trips from paratransit to 
fixed-route, Metro Transit provides a no-cost transit pass. 
 
3. The Bus Buddy (BB) program utilizes qualified volunteers to train and accompany passengers on fixed-
route public transit to familiarize them with the service.   The BB program also offers group transit-
familiarization trips that include training on using Metro Transit maps, timetables, and website.  
Participants receive a 10-ride senior/disabled fare card upon completion.           
 
Subrecipient:  Dane County Department of Human Services 
Project: Focused Transportation for People with Intellectual / Developmental 


Disabilities 
 
Dane County will begin a new mobility management program in 2017 that will focus on improving 
transportation options for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities.  The program will 
use the Design Thinking process highlighted by the National Center for Mobility Management (NCMM) 
to identify needs and recommend specific solutions.  The program will reduce reliance on paratransit, 
lowering long-term costs for Metro Transit. 
 
 







 4 


 
Subrecipient:  City of Stoughton 
Project: Minivan - Side Entry (5/1) and Minivan - Rear Entry (4/2) 
 
The City of Stoughton offers a share-ride taxi program open to the residents of Stoughton through a 
contract with a private taxi service provider.  The City of Stoughton currently owns two accessible 
minivans; each will be retired at the end of 2016.  About 30,000 rides per year are taken on the taxi 
system, the majority of whom are seniors or people with disabilities.  The shared-ride taxi system is 
important to the community and is used for important trips to and from work, shopping, entertainment, 
medical appointments, and education. 
 





		8a-R-66-2017 Section 5310 Subrecipient Agreement.pdf

		8b-2017 Capital Assistance Grant Agreement - Stoughton.pdf

		8c-Section 5310 Notice.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B”
Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Area Resource Team (START).


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 4-0


File Number: R-67-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Area Resource Team (START) has applied for a Temporary Class “B”/Class
“B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License for the Stoughton Area Resource Team (START)
Annual Celebration Fundraising Event, and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on April 26, 2017 to consider the terms of the Application
for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License, and recommends
approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Temporary Class
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License for the Stoughton Area Resource Team
(START) Annual Celebration Fundraising Event are approved.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







lkropf

Text Box

             



lkropf

Text Box

       







lkropf

Text Box

        



lkropf

Text Box





lkropf

Text Box





lkropf

Text Box





lkropf

Text Box





lkropf

Text Box











		9a-R-67-2017-Stoughton Area Resource Team Special Event & Temp Liq.pdf

		9b-Stoughton Area Resource Team Temp Retailers Lic Application.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B”
Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Skaalen Retirement Services, INC.


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 4-0


File Number: R-68-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


WHEREAS, Skaalen Retirement Services, INC has applied for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B”
Retailer’s License and a Special Event License for the Stoughton Art Walk Event, and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on April 26, 2017 to consider the terms of the Application
for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License, and recommends
approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Temporary Class
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License for the Stoughton Art Walk Event are
approved.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote











lkropf

Text Box

    



lkropf

Text Box

     



lkropf

Text Box

     

















		10a-R-68-2017-Skaalen Special Event & Temp Liq.pdf

		10b-Skaalen Special Event & Temp Retailer's Lic App.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B”
Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association
(SOHFA)


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 4-0


File Number: R-69-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association (SOHFA) has applied for a Temporary
Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License for the Catfish River Music Festival,
and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on April 26, 2017 to consider the terms of the Application
for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License, and recommends
approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Temporary Class
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License for the Catfish River Music Festival are
approved.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







lkropf

Text Box





lkropf

Text Box

       





































		11a-R-69-2017-Stoughton Friend of the Opera House Special Event & Temp Liq.pdf

		11b-Catfish River  Special Event & Temp Retailer's Lic App018.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to initiate the Planned Development process for
properties located between Fourth Street and Eighth Street and south of E. South Street to the Yahara


River, Stoughton, WI, excluding single-family residential along E. South St. and 7th St. (see map).


Committee Action: Common Council


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R-70-2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


RECITALS


Whereas, the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (RDA) seeks to redevelop part of the Rail
Corridor Redevelopment District (Redevelopment District #1) known as the Riverfront Redevelopment Area;
and


Whereas, the City of Stoughton and the RDA are the majority property owners within the Riverfront
Redevelopment Area (Area) and are in the process of acquiring the remaining privately-owned property within
the Area; and


Whereas, the RDA issued a request for development proposals and selected two developers to improve the
area consistent with previously established City plans and intends to engage the public in a design charrette to
solicit input on a master plan for the Area; and


Whereas, the Area is currently zoned Industrial, Institutional and Multi-Family Residential but plans call for
re-zoning the Area as a Planned Development. Stoughton’s Zoning Ordinance provides three options for
initiating a Planned Development process – application by the property owner to the Plan Commission,
recommendation by the Plan Commission or action of the City Council.


Therefore, after consideration of the public ownership of the Area and the complexity of the issues involved,
the RDA believes a Council-initiated Planned Development process to be the most appropriate way to begin
the re-zoning process and requests approval of this Resolution;


RESOLUTION


BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Common Council approves initiation of the Planned
Development process for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area located between Fourth Street and Eighth
Street and south of E. South Street to the Yahara River, excluding single-family residential along E. South
St. and 7th St. (see map).


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto







Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote









		13a-R-70-2017-Planned Development Resolution for Redevelopment Area.pdf

		13b-Area Proposed for Planned Development v2.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approve the proposal for Architecture Consulting Services


to determine the structural integrity of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building


Committee Action: Redevelopment Authority recommends Council approval 7-0


Fiscal Impact: $8,768.00


File Number: R- 71 -2017 Date Introduced: May 9, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council at their regularly scheduled meeting on April 11,
2017, adopted R-50-2017 authorizing the removal of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building from the
temporary demolition moratorium, exempting the Mandt Foundry building and to incorporate the Mandt
Foundry Building into the development with the motion carrying 8 to 3, and


WHEREAS, the safety of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building has been evaluated by city staff, as
well as the assessment of risk to the community and additional fencing was installed to further restrict
public access to the site, and


WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Authority at its April 12, 2017 meeting discussed the involvement of
the Highway Trailer Building in the upcoming design charrette and that the bricks from the building
along the river on the Millfab property will be saved for later use in restoring the foundry portion of the
Stoughton Highway Trailer Building. The RDA recommended evaluating the building to be sure the
demolition of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building will not do any damage to the Mandt Foundry
building. A consultant was contacted to perform a structural survey of the building which was estimated
around $10,000. The survey will help to determine how safe the building is and to give guidance as to
how to keep the building and the surrounding area safe until it can be taken down, and


WHEREAS, the Mayor requested a proposal from InSite Consulting Architects for the structural
evaluation of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building, and


WHEREAS, InSite Consulting Architects appeared before the Redevelopment Authority on May 3,
2017 to present a proposal for an exterior survey of the building conditions, an interior survey of the
building conditions, a cursory structural assessment, preliminary potential modes of failure of the
building, and recommendations for public safety/risk management, and


WHEREAS, the proposal for consulting services as outlined above totals $8,768.00, and


WHEREAS, an additional proposal will come forward in order to evaluate the old foundry (or
blacksmith shop as the Sanborn map calls it) for methods to prevent damage while the buildings around
it come down, now therefore







BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton authorizes the proper city
officials to approve the proposal from InSite Consulting Architects (ICA) in the amount of $8,768.00
with funds to come from the TID.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote









		14a-R71.2017 Structural Engineering Hwy Trailer.pdf

		14b-InSite Proposal 5.1.17.pdf






Whereas, The Office of the Municipal Clerk, a time honored and vital part of local


government exists throughout the world, and


Whereas, The Office of the Municipal Clerk is the oldest among public servants, and


Whereas, The Office of the Municipal Clerk provides the professional link between the


citizens, the local governing bodies and agencies of government at other levels, and


Whereas, Municipal Clerks have pledged to be ever mindful of their neutrality and


impartiality, rendering equal service to all; and


Whereas, The Municipal Clerk serves as the information center on functions of local


government and community; and


Whereas, Municipal Clerks continually strive to improve the administration of the affairs of


the Office of the Municipal Clerk through participation in education programs, seminars,


workshops and the annual meetings of their state, country, and international professional


organizations; and


Whereas, it is most appropriate that we recognize the accomplishments of the Office of the


Municipal Clerk.


Now therefore, I, Donna Olson, by the virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the


City of Stoughton, do hereby proclaim May 7th through May 13th, 2017 as Municipal Clerks


Week, and further extend appreciation to our Municipal Clerk, Lana Kropf , our Deputy


Clerk Kelli Krcma, and to all Municipal Clerks for the vital services they perform and their


exemplary dedication to the communities they represent.


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton,
hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of the City of Stoughton


to be affixed this ninth day of May in the year two thousand and
seventeen.


___________________________________________________
Mayor Donna Olson








Whereas, public works services provided in our community are an integral part of our


citizens’ everyday lives; and


Whereas, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the


efficient operation of public works systems and programs such as water, sewers, streets


and highways, public buildings and solid waste collection; and


Whereas, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these


facilities and services; and


Whereas, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their planning,


design and construction, is vitally dependent upon the efforts and skill of public works


officials; and


Whereas, the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel who staff the public


works departments is materially influenced by the people’s attitude and understanding of


the importance of the work they perform;


Now therefore, I, Donna Olson, by the virtue of the authority vested in me as


Mayor of the City of Stoughton, do hereby proclaim May 21-27, 2017 as:


“National Public Works Week”
in the city of Stoughton, Wisconsin, and call upon all citizens to acquaint themselves
with the issues involved in providing our public works and to recognize the contributions
which public works officials make every day to our health, safety, comfort and quality of
life.


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of
Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of
the City of Stoughton to be affixed this ninth day of May in
the year two thousand and seventeen.


____________________________________________
Mayor Donna Olson








Whereas, the goal of nursing homes is to provide the highest quality care and the


highest quality of life for all residents entrusted to their care; and


Whereas, the rights and dignity of nursing home residents are at the heart of the care


delivered; and


Whereas, the residents residing at Skaalen Nursing and Rehabilitation Center are


treasures in our community and deserve to be honored and respected; and


Whereas, the community of Stoughton and Skaalen Nursing and Rehabilitation


Center, with a tradition of caring for 115 years, have a history of and a commitment to
the needs of the elderly; and


Whereas, an emphasis of care is to provide wellness programs to advance healthy aging


attitudes and programs for Skaalen and Stoughton community; and


Whereas, Skaalen Nursing and Rehabilitation Center, is one of thousands of not-for-


profit providers hosting events throughout the month of May, and, as a member of
LeadingAge, invites home caregivers to visit nursing homes and benefit from the
knowledge and experience of their staff;


Now therefore, I, Donna Olson, by the virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor


of the City of Stoughton, do hereby proclaim the week of May 14-20, 2017 as


Nursing Home Week
In this community and urge all citizens to be a part of the quality of life nursing home
residents enjoy by visiting nursing homes and offering support and congratulations to
the residents, who are cherished members of the community, and to the staff, who truly
are leaders in quality health care and vital resources to the citizens of this city.


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused
the great seal of the City of Stoughton to be affixed this proclamation on this ninth day of May in the year
Two Thousand and Seventeen.


________________ ____________________________
Date Mayor Donna Olson








Whereas, water follows a natural cycle from Earth to air to Earth again; and


Whereas, water is a basic and essential need of every living creature; and


Whereas, our health, comfort, and standard of living depend upon an abundant supply


of safe drinking water; and


Whereas, the citizens of our City should have safe and dependable supply of water


both now and in the future; and


Whereas, we are calling upon each citizen to help protect our source waters from


pollution, practicing water conservation, and getting involved in local water issues; and


Whereas, the City of Stoughton has insured that facilities and systems provide our


citizens with safe, dependable water since 1886 to the present and in the future;


Now therefore, I, Donna Olson, by the virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor


of the City of Stoughton, do hereby proclaim May 7-13, 2017 as


Drinking Water Week
In Stoughton, Wisconsin, and urge all citizens to recognize the contributions of our
Stoughton utility employees for over one hundred and thirty years of dedication.


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused
the great seal of the City of Stoughton to be affixed this ninth day of May in the year two thousand and
seventeen.


________________ ____________________________
Date Mayor Donna Olson








Whereas, Stoughton, Wisconsin, was incorporated as a village in 1868, and as a


fourth class city in 1882; and


Whereas, there was an influx of Norwegian immigrants in the area in the 1870’s and


1880’s because of the inauspicious conditions prevailing in their native country, the
wonderful farm land in southeastern Wisconsin, and the jobs provided by the ever-
expanding wagon factory; and


Whereas, since 1868, there have been periodic celebrations held in the city


acknowledging the signing of the Norwegian constitution; and


Whereas, in 1939, there occurred the largest celebration of the signing of the


Norwegian constitution in the city’s history; and


Whereas, in 1952, members of the Chamber of Commerce endorsed a small celebration


to begin the revival of Syttende Mai in Stoughton; and


Whereas, the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce organized the celebration in 1953 and


has continued to do so ever since; now


Therefore, the people of Stoughton, Wisconsin, welcome all our friends and neighbors,


from far and wide, to our celebration of the signing of the Norwegian Constitution.


VELKOMMEN TIL SYTTENDE MAI!
May 19, 20 & 21, 2017


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton,
hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of the City of Stoughton


to be affixed this ninth day of May in the year two thousand and
seventeen.


___________________________________________________
Mayor Donna Olson








 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, April 12, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Peter Sveum, Scott Truehl, Regina Hirsch, Dan Kittleson, Ron Christianson, Brian 
Kahl, John Kramper, Steve Sletten and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 
 


Absent: 
None 
 
Others Present: 
Mayor Olson, Dave Porterfield, Gary Becker, Greg Jenson, Bill Livick, Laura Trotter,  
Sid Boersma, Gary Blazek and Todd Nelson 
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
Sveum reminded committee that the Council Reorganizational meeting will be on April 
18th and that at the RDA’s next meeting they will be electing a chair and vice-chair for 
the new year.  Becker stated he had a conflict for the May meeting scheduled for the 
10th.   
It was discussed and decided to move the regular scheduled RDA meeting to May 3, 
2017.   
 
Approval of the December 14, 2016, January 11, 2017, February 8, 2017, February 
20, 2017 and March 8, 2017 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to approve the minutes of the December 
14, 2016, January 11, 2017, February 8, 2017, February 20, 2017 and March 8, 2017 
RDA meetings as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Stoughton RDA website: 
Laura Trotter from the Stoughton Chamber addressed the committee.  She reported 
that the Chamber is designing a new website and there is limited space available.  The 
Chamber would happily have a link for the RDA on their site to link visitors to the cities 
website.  Mayor Olson stated she had talked with Derek Westby about creating a 
webpage or squarespace for the RDA and he said he could for a cost of about $250.00. 
Committee would like Westby to come to the next meeting and walk them thru the 
options. 
 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area discussion and possible action regarding: 


a. Millfab demolition bid package 
Gary Blazek from Vierbicher and Associates presented draft demolition forms 
and specs.  He stated they are just about ready to send to Planning Director 
Rodney Scheel and the City Attorney for approval before they are sent out to 
bid.  He reported the DNR recently did more asbestos testing and ran other tests 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
April 12, 2017 
Page 2 
 


to determine what exactly is in the building that needs to be dealt with.  Once 
those results are back they will fine tune the bid package to include that 
information.  Becker reminded the committee that we received a grant for the 
demolition and we have some time constraints we need to keep in mind.  Blazek 
stated there will be a site meeting with anyone who will be making bids.  Truehl 
expressed interest at being at the site meeting and Blazek will notify the 
committee when the meeting will take place if anyone else is interested in 
attending.  Discussion about saving the bricks from foundry took place.  
Discussion included needing to include the brick option into the bid package and 
where to keep the bricks once removed.  Blazek went thru the demolition 
process and said he would estimate it would take a month to complete.  
Discussion about reviewing and approving the specs took place.  It was decided 
that Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Becker, Scheel and the city attorney 
could review and approve the demolition specifications.   
 


b. Design charrette 
Becker suggested May 15-17th as the design charrette dates.  This is Syttende 
Mai week and those dates will not work for the community.  Becker will look at 
other dates in early June and see if they will work with the design charrette team 
and Tanesay.   
 


c. Highway Trailer Building 
Becker handed out a graphic depicting a suggestion from Council for saving the foundry 
portion of the Highway Trailer Building.  It was approved that the foundry building will be 
included for discussion in the design charrette.  The bricks from the building along the 
river on the Millfab property will be saved for later use in restoring the foundry portion of 
the Highway Trailer Building as they are from the same source.  The foundry building 
will be included in the overall development and a developer/owner will be sought to turn 
it into a productive use.  The foundry will need to be evaluated to be sure the demolition 
of the Highway Trailer Building will not do any damage.  Becker reached out to Steven 
Mar-Pohl to get an idea of how much an evaluation would cost and he guessed around 
$10,000.   
 
Becker reported there would be Brownfield redevelopment grants available to 
help pay for the demolition cost of the Hwy Trailer, carpet warehouse and the 
Stoughton trailers building.  He can submit for the grants this summer and they 
would be awarded in the fall.  Spec would then be prepared in the winter and 
demolition could take place next spring.   
 
Mayor brought up concerns about the Highway Trailer Building and it’s stability.  
Becker stated the structure study would help determine how safe the building is 
and give us guidance as to how to keep the building and the surrounding area 
safe until it can be taken down. 


 
d. Tanesay Development agreement 


Becker stated he talked with Mark Geall and told him that Council wanted to 
meet with him before the charrette.  Sveum also reported that Council wanted an 
update at each council meeting from here on out.  Becker was directed to invite  







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
April 12, 2017 
Page 3 


 
Geall to an upcoming Council meeting to give a presentation. 
 


e.  Movin’ Out memorandum of understanding 
Dave Porterfield with Movin’ Out addressed the committee.  His deadline for 
submitting for grants is early June.  He needs to show he has control of the 
parcels for the grant.  He asked the committee to empower a group to work with 
him and his group to get a memorandum of understanding started.  Discussion 
took place on waiting for the design charrette to take place before moving 
forward to see if this is still the direction to go.  Becker was directed to work with 
the city attorney and Scheel to start working on a plan for the agreement before 
the next meeting.  Sveum will make contact with Ken Wahlin of Stoughton 
Trailers and the affected homeowner. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Carpet Warehouse Building - 
425 East South Street: 
Sveum reported that the attorney and Becker are working to get the survey 
completed so closing can take place the last week in April.  Once building is 
owned by the RDA an inspection will need to take place to see how we need to 
secure it. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding development proposal for the 
Marathon Site – 314 West Main Street: 
Todd Nelson presented his proposal for the Marathon Site.  He reported he met 
with an adjacent neighbor to discuss his plans and was met with no concerns.  
Nelson wanted to see if the committee would be interested in residential for that 
site before he made a formal proposal.  Committee showed interest in his draft 
proposal and encouraged him to make a formal proposal.  Sveum will talk with 
the realtor to get Nelson to give us a proposal.  LaBorde was directed to provide 
an update on the financials for this site at next meeting. 
 
Discussion regarding Revolving Loan Fund status: 
Nothing to report 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
Elections in May 
Marathon Site 
Design charrette 
Carpet Warehouse building 
Highway Trailer building 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Kahl, to adjourn at 7:05 p.m. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
April 11, 2017 – 6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Alderpersons Paul Lawrence, Regina Hirsch, Pat O’Connor, Tim Swadley, and Mayor
Olson


Others Present:
Clerk Lana Kropf, Finance Director LaBorde, Planning Director Scheel, Utilities Director
Kardasz, Joe Murray, Gary Becker, Randy Nelson, and Paul Jadin


Absent and Excused:
None


Call to order:
Chairperson Lawrence called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Communications:
Planning Director Scheel explained that Dwight Shanak of Modern Hydro had sent a
request to the City asking if they could obtain the Power House on South Fourth Street.
Shanak asked that if they were allowed to use the building that the City make it
operational. Hirsch noted that the RDA has a plan for that building as part the
redevelopment. She asked that the RDA be consulted for the requested use. The
committee discussed not allowing the power house to be used by Modern Hydro.


Motion by O’Connor, to not pursue any further action regarding Modern Hydro taking
possession of the Power House for generation of power, second by Hirsch. Motion
carried 5-0.


Reports:
 February 2017 Treasurer’s Report
 Contingency Report


No action was taken.


Finance Committee Minutes (3/14/2017 & 3/28/2017) and Joint Finance Committee
and Public Works Committee Minutes (3/14/2017):


Motion by O’Connor, to approve the Finance Committee Minutes (3/14/2017 &
3/28/2017) and Joint Finance Committee and Public Works Committee Minutes
(3/14/2017), second by Hirsch. Motion carried 5-0.


R-48-2017- Resolution providing for the sale of $7,660,000 General Obligation
Promissory Notes, Series 2017A:


Joe Murray from Springsted explained the set sale resolution to the committee. He
noted that the Council has approved the amount of the borrowing at the last Council
meeting. He explained that the total borrowing amount was $7,660,000 and that
borrowing was for the 2017 and 2018 CIP. He noted that the borrowing also included
land purchases, stormwater management, and a road extension within TID#6. The







borrowing would hold an interest rate of approximately 2.4% and would be back for
Council consideration on May 9.


Motion by O’Connor, to approve the resolution providing for the sale of $7,660,000
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A and refer to Council for
consideration, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 5-0.


Discussion regarding Gold Shovel program by Gary Becker:


Gary Becker addressed the committee regarding the Gold Shovel program. He
explained that this program certifies properties available for development and lists them
on the Madison Region Economic Partnership’s website. Paul Jadin, the President of
MadREP, explained that properties that have received the Gold Shovel certification tend
to be developed faster than properties that are not. He explained that there is a $3,000
fee for each certified property and that as long as there are no changes to the property,
that fee does not have to be paid again. The Committee requested that this item be
added as a future agenda item.


Consideration and possible action to approve designation of $750.00 from the
Tree Commission Recycling Program for a Forestry Scholarship:


Randy Nelson, of the Stoughton Tree Commission, addressed the committee regarding
the creation of the Forestry Scholarship. He noted that that funding for the scholarship is
coming from the recycling of trees within the City. O’Connor expressed concerns with
using City tax dollars to pay for a private scholarship. Mayor Olson explained the City
Attorney had determined that City funds could be used if the Council deemed the use to
be appropriate. Nelson noted that this scholarship may continue on annual basis.


Motion by Hirsch, to approve the designation of $750.00 from the Tree Commission
Recycling Program for a Forestry Scholarship and refer to Council for consideration,
second by Swadley. Motion carried 4-1, with O’Connor voting noe.


**Consideration and possible action regarding Property acquisition for Public
Works Facility and Future Uses
**The committee may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat sec 19.85(1)(e),
to consider the acquisition of property for Public Works Facility, Stoughton, WI and may
return into open session to take action on matters discussed in closed session.


Motion by O’Connor, to convene the Finance Committee into closed session, second by
Olson. Motion carried 5-0. The Committee convened into closed session at 6:40 p.m.


Motion by Hirsch, to reconvene the Finance Committee into open session, second by
Swadley. Motion carried 5-0. The Committee convened into open session at 6:45 p.m.


R-49-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the
proposal for appraisal services with L.A. Duesterbeck and Associates, INC, for
2431 County Highway A, Stoughton, WI:


Finance Director LaBorde explained that Attorney Dregne had offered this company to
perform the appraisal for the property located at 2431 County Highway A. She noted that
this appraisal is necessary for the next steps in the eminent domain process. She also







indicated that the appraisal services would cost $1,200 and would paid for by the 2017
borrowing.


Motion by Hirsch, to approve R-49-2017 and refer to Council for consideration, second
by O’Connor. Motion carried 5-0.


Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn the April 11, 2017 meeting of the Finance Committee,
second by O’Connor. Motion carried 5-0. The meeting of the Finance Committee
adjourned at 6:48 p.m.







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, March 22, 2017
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Present: Chair, Michael Engelberger, Alderpersons, Greg Jenson, Dennis Kittleson, Mayor
Donna Olson (arrived at 6:20pm), and Police Chief Greg Leck


Excused: Alderperson Truehl


Guests: Sylvia Lawrence, Teressa Pellett, and Brent Kooima


Call to Order: 6:01 p.m.


Communications:


Police Chief Leck reminded the committee of the upcoming liquor license review process.
Along with this, Chief Leck reported to having one problem establishment during this current
licensing period and suggested that the committee have the licensee come in and speak to
them regarding the issues. The committee requested that the licensee be ordered in to the
April 26th meeting.


Approval of Minutes: Motion by Kittleson, 2nd by Jensen to approve the minutes from the
2-22-17 meeting. Motion passed 3-0


Old Business


None


New Business


3. Request for a Special Event license & Temporary Class “B” Retailer’s License
for Sustainable Stoughton.


Motion by Jensen, 2nd by Kittleson to approve issuance of the license.
Approved 2-0 with Engelberger recusing himself.


4. Request for a Special Event license & Temporary Class “B” Retailer’s License
for Stoughton Duck’s Unlimited.


Motion by Jensen, 2nd by Kittleson to approve the license. Approved 3-0


5. Discussion and Possible action regarding addition of a crosswalk and lighted
pedestrian crossing signs on Amundson Drive (between Giles & Ridge St)


Chief Leck reported that he was not completely clear what this request involved.
The Mayor had received the request during an event at the Senior Center. The
request was for a lighted crosswalk to be placed on Amundson Drive between Giles
& Ridge Street. Chief Leck advised that there is not enough use to place a lighted
crosswalk sign at the location and that the only option for a crosswalk was at Ridge
Street. The committee stated that they would need more clarification on what was
being requested and directed staff to get more details and return.







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes
September 28, 2011
Page 2


6. Discussion and possible action regarding addition of lighted pedestrian
crossing signs in the 1200 block of East Main Street (at Amundson)


As with the previous item, the Mayor had received a request for a lighted crosswalk
on E. Main Street at Amundson Drive. Chief Leck reported that the department had
just received grant monies that include 2 lighted Crosswalk Signs. Chief Leck
reported that this location had been previously identified as a need for the new
signage.


Motion by Kittleson, 2nd by Jensen to approve the placement of a lighted
crosswalk sign on E. Main Street at Amundson Drive. Approved 3-0


7. Discussion regarding public vagrancy


Alderperson Jensen reported that he was hearing concerns from citizens regarding
panhandling in the city. Chief Leck reported that it is occurring but very isolated at
this time. Chief Leck added that we have a resident that has been fairly aggressive
lately and the department has worked with the person. The person is not homeless
and is currently receiving aid. This person usually panhandles for cash. Chief Leck
reported that occasionally we will see a transient panhandler in town but nothing on
a regular basis. The department checks on any panhandlers and reviews available
services with them. Unfortunately, many of the panhandlers are only looking for
cash to usually purchase drugs or alcohol.


Chief Leck advised the issue here is still very isolated and reports it is not much of a
problem here. Chief Leck added that the department will continue to monitor it.


Future agenda items:


Downtown Parking Review


Liquor License Review (special review Whatever Bar)


Best Practices for Special Event Temporary Class “B” licenses


Moved by Jensen, 2nd By Kittleson to adjourn at 6:40 p.m. Carried unanimously.


Respectfully Submitted,
Greg Leck, Chief of Police





		6- April 12, 2017 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		6c-April 11, 2017 Finance Minutes.pdf

		6-PSC Minutes 03-22-17.pdf






Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, April 25, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Finance Director LaBorde called the roll and noted that ten alderpersons were present, with Kittleson 


and Majewski being absent and excused. 


 


Alderperson Hirsch thanked all involved with the planning and participation of the April 22, 2017 Earth 


Day Expo. 


 


Council President Swadley announced to the Council that the school district would like to continue to 


hold joint meetings between the Committee of the Whole and the Stoughton Board of Education. He 


asked that this be placed on the agenda as a future agenda item. 


 


Mayor Olson announced that the Stoughton Middle School had received a $25,000 grant from 


Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation, for the creation of a FabLab, similar to the one at the 


Stoughton High School. 


 


Mayor Olson noted that the annual Med and Sharps Drop will be held on April 29, 2017 from 9am to 


11am at the Stoughton Fire Department. 


 


Mayor Olson also encouraged the Council and citizens to come to the front of City Hall to see the new 


lighted pedestrian crossing signs. She stated that similar signs would be placed in front of the east side 


Kwik Trip as well. 


 


2017 Arbor Day Proclamation 


Mayor Olson proclaimed April 28, 2017 as Arbor Day for the City of Stoughton. 


 


2017 Volunteer of the Year Proclamation 


Mayor Olson proclaimed that the 2017 Volunteers of the Year included: John Witzel along with the 


Veteran’s Memorial Park Steering Committee: Duane Broughton, Jim Oler, Vic Duesel, Rick Kumlien, 


Bud Erickson, Sonny Swangstu, Roger Kleven, Roger Nitzsche, David Stolen, Randy Robertson & 


Dennis Derke 


 


  


  


 







2017 Business Person of the Year Proclamation 


Mayor Olson proclaimed that the 2017 Business Persons of the Year were Cummins Community 


Involvement Team represented by Tyler Lorenz & Mark Mentink as well as Moyer’s Incorporated 


represented by Jeff Moyer. 


 


2017 Friend of Youth Proclamation 


Mayor Olson proclaimed that the 2017 Friend of Youth as Nick Koshollek. 


 


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes and reports were entered into the record: 


 Redevelopment Authority (12/14/2016, 1/11/2017, 2/8/2017, 2/20/2017, and 3/8/2017), Police 


and Fire Commission (7/25/2016, 8/16/2016, 10/24/2016, 8/17/2016, 8/20/2016, 8/21/2016), 


Personnel Committee (3/6/2017), Finance Committee (3/14/2017 & 3/28/2017), Joint Meeting 


of Finance and Public Works (3/14/2017), Landmarks Commission (2/21/2017 & 3/9/2017), 


Planning Commission (3/13/2017& 3/23/2017), Planning Commission Open House 


(3/13/2017), Public Works Committee (3/21/2017), and Tree Commission (3/8/2017) 


 March 2017 Treasurer’s Report 


 Utilities Financial Reports 


 


Public Comment Period:  


 


Richard MacDonald; 524 Kings Lynn Rd; Spoke in favor of the hiring and appointment of the IT/Media 


Services Director position. 


 


Gregor Lee; 103 Manilla St; Spoke in favor of the resolution approving the request for city participation 


and contribution to partner with the Stoughton Housing Authority, and faith communities, to support 


rental housing units, to address homelessness in Stoughton using the Housing First Model.  


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


 A. April 11, 2017 Council Minutes 


B. R-62-2017- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Paul Lawrence to 


the Stoughton Tree Commission 


 


Hirsch requested that R-62-2017 be removed from the Consent Agenda and be placed under new 


business.  


 


Motion by Boersma, to approve the April 11, 2017 Council Minutes, second by Truehl. Motion 


carried 10-0. 


 


 


PUBLIC HEARING:  to consider special assessments for sidewalks, driveways, aprons, carriage 


walks, and curb and gutter for the following projects: 


 


2017 Street and Utility Construction project that includes work on Henry Street – Main Street to 


Ridge Street, Park Street – Lynn Street to Academy Street, Manilla Street – Brickson Street to 


Forton Street, Brickson Street – Page Street to Yahara River, Harrison Street – Hamilton Street 


to Main Street, and Division Street – Washington Street to 233 N. Division Street. 







Mayor Olson closed the Common Council meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:15 p.m. 


 


Gregor Lee; 103 Manilla St; Spoke in opposition of the Special Assessments to affect his 


property, more specifically a rain garden, and questioned the process. 


 


Karen Galling; 145 Academy St; Spoke in opposition of the Special Assessments to affect her 


property and questioned the process. 


 


Connie Rigdon; 200 S Hanson St; Spoke against the current Special Assessment process and 


gave the Council written options on how to address this matter in the future. Mayor Olson asked 


that she give her written response to the Finance Director to be distributed to the Council via 


email. 


 


Jessica Hartman; 103 N Division St; Spoke against the Special Assessment process and 


questioned the ability of the municipality to charge two percent interest to the citizens on the 


services. 


 


Lorenzo Vacarro; 103 N Divison St; Questioned the Special Assessment process and asked if the 


notices sent out in the future could contain more specific details about the work that needs to be 


done. 


 


Martin Bragge; 145 Forton St; Understands the Special Assessment process, but wondered if the 


City would help individuals who still have lead water service pipes into their home from the 


curb. 


 


Mayor Olson closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Council meeting at 7:32 p.m. 


 


Mayor Olson asked the Council to move the Special Assessment resolution, R-61-2017, to the 


first item under new business. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 
 


NONE 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-61-2017- Resolution authorizing improvements and levying special assessments against benefited 


property in the City of Stoughton for the improvement of curb and gutter, retaining walls, sidewalks, 


driveway aprons, carriage walks, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for the 


2017 Street and Utility Construction project.  


 


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-61-2017, second by Engelberger. 


 


Council President Swadley asked Planning Director Scheel to review the current sidewalk policy 


and compare its requirements to the current Comprehensive Plan. 


 







Planning Director Scheel explained the timeline of the notices to the affected home owners being 


sent, the open house, and the preliminary special assessment resolution. He noted that these 


concerns come forward every year, but cannot change the process until the time that the 


ordinance is changed.  


 


Hirsch asked that the current policies be reviewed by the Public Works and Community 


Affairs/Council Policy Committees within the next three months. 


 


Planning Director Scheel noted that the City ordinances do have a provision for individuals 


facing financial hardships and that option is available at any time. 


 


Brian Hoops did explain that while the Utilities does have commitment to community funds, the 


replacement of lead service pipes is not an appropriate use of those funds. Brian Hoops then 


explained that the City could not replace any lead water service pipes from the curb into a 


citizen’s home. He noted this interference is against PSC Standards and State Statute. Attorney 


Dregne confirmed Mr. Hoop’s statement. 


 


Original motion was then voted on by the Common Council and carried on a roll call vote of 10-


0. 


 


R-63-2017- Resolution approving the request for city participation and contribution to partner with 


the Stoughton Housing Authority and faith communities to support rental housing units to address 


homelessness in Stoughton using the Housing First Model  


 


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-63-2017, second by Boersma. O’Connor explained that this 


resolution would allow the City to participate in a grant and would cost $15,000. He noted that the funds 


for this grant would come from the contingency fund. Engelberger explained that the $15,000 would be 


used to develop the building and is a onetime expense. Motion carried on a roll call vote of 10-0. 


 


R-62-2017- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Paul Lawrence to the Stoughton 


Tree Commission 


 


Motion by Hirsch, to have this appointment be advertised in the Courier Hub for the next two weeks and 


have alderpersons compile a list of qualified candidates to give to staff, second by Reeves. Mayor Olson 


explained that there are two vacancies on the Tree Commission with a recent resignation. Motion carried 


8-2, with O’Connor and Truehl voting noe. 


 


No action was taken on R-62-2017. 


 


R-56-2017 – Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving the revision of the 


Debt Management Policy (adopted 1999; revised 8/26/2008)  


 


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-56-2017, second by Swadley. O’Connor explained that Finance 







Director LaBorde had noticed that the City was going to exceed its current debt limit and that the policy 


needed to be changed. The state statute has indicated that a municipalities’ debt cannot exceed five 


percent of the municipalities’ equalized value and the City’s current policy has the percentage set at 


2.32%. Swadley noted that the Finance Committee has requested that the policy for the City be set at 4% 


and that the resolution reflect that. Alderperson Hirsch questioned if the City’s debt would be restricted 


at 4% with the future borrowing or if that limit would need to be raised. Finance Director LaBorde noted 


that based on her calculations the City would not exceed the 4% limit with the proposed borrowing. 


 


Motion to amend by Boersma, to increase the direct debt burden ratio from 4% to 4.5%, second by 


Engelberger. Motion failed 3-7, with Swadley, Johnson, Reeves, Jenson, Truehl, O’Connor, and Hirsch 


voting noe.  


 


Original motion, approving the direct debt burden ratio in the debt management policy at 4%, carried 


10-0. 


 


R-57-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


approving the Concept to Enter into a Long-term Agreement to use the Building and Generate 


Power at 601 S. Fourth (Former Powerhouse). 


 


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-57-2017, second by Engelberger. O’Connor explained that 


the Finance Committee had discussed this at the last meeting. He noted that the current 


Redevelopment Authority plan in that area does have a plan for that building and does not 


include power generation. Motion failed 0-10, with Boersma, Swadley, Johnson, Jenson, Hirsch, 


Engelberger, Truehl, Bartlett, Reeves, and O’Connor voting noe. 


 


R-58-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton 


Utilities Utility Billing Statement Messages and Insert Policy.  


 


Motion by Jenson, to approve R-58-2017, second by Engelberger. Jenson explained that this 


policy had been reviewed and approved by the Community Affairs and Council Policy 


committee. Hirsch asked if the inserts would be available to those who received their bills by 


email. Brian Hoops noted that contained within the email is a brief summary of the paper inserts. 


Motion carried 10-0. 


   


R-59-2017- Approving a Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1399 US Highway 51 


(Aldi’s Food Store). 


 


Motion by Truehl, to approve R-59-2017, second by Engelberger. Truehl explained that this 


CSM would address the Jackson Street right-of-way issue. Planning Director Scheel then 


detailed the access point of the lot to the Council. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


 


 







Discussion and possible action regarding setting Council Goals, Objectives, and Initiatives for 


2017/2018  


 


Council President Swadley explained that he wanted to discuss the Council’s goals, objectives, 


and initiatives for the 2017/2018 term. He asked that the alderpersons compile what they would 


like to discuss and send to the Clerk to be included in the June Community Affairs/Council 


Policy committee meeting. Motion by Swadley, to direct alderpersons to compile their Council 


goals, objectives, and initiatives and return to the City Clerk and for the Clerk to return the 


findings to Council by June 13, 2017, second by Jenson. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


***R-60-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the appointment 


and hiring of the City of Stoughton IT/ Media Information Technology Director salaried at 


$78,728.00. 


 


***  The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) considering employment 


and compensation of the City of Stoughton IT/Media Information Technology Director. The Council 


may reconvene in open session to take action on the hiring, appointment, and compensation of the City 


of Stoughton IT/Media Information Technology Director position. 


 


Motion by Boersma, to convene the Council into closed session, second by Truehl. Motion failed on a 


roll call vote 2-8, with Johnson, Reeves, Engelberger, Jenson, Truehl, Bartlett, Hirsch, and Swadley 


voting noe. The Council discussed there was not a need for the group to convene in closed session. 


 


Motion by Johnson, to approve R-60-2017 and amend the resolution to include Sneha Patel as the 


appointment, second by O’Connor. Human Resources Director Gillingham addressed the Council 


regarding the search and hiring process of the IT/Media Technology Director. She noted that of the 


candidates, Sneha Patel was the most qualified and would like to extend the offer to her. She noted that 


this is a leadership position and her starting salary would be $78,728.00.  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Johnson. Motion carried 


10-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
 








 


 


Meeting of the: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL 


Date/Time:  Thursday, January 26, 2017 @ 6:00 p.m. 


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Level of Public Safety Building) 321 S Fourth St 


Members:   Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett Sid Boersma, Michael Engelberger, Regina  


   Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Tass Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, Paul  


   Lawrence, Thomas Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl, and Mayor  


   Donna Olson  


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Council President Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that 8 alderpersons were present, along with the Mayor. 


Alderpersons that were absent were: Engelberger, Hirsch, Boersma and Truehl. 


 


 


Approval of the minutes from the December 27, 2016 and January 10, 2017 Committee of 


the Whole meetings. 


 


Motion by Kittleson, to approve the minutes from the December 27, 2016 and January 10, 2017 


Committee of the Whole meetings, second by Lawrence. Motion carried 9-0. 


 


Engelberger joined the meeting at 6:04 p.m. 


 


The committee may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis Stat sec 19.85(1)(e), to 


consider strategy to be adopted in negotiating a development agreement relating to Kettle 


Park West Phase II. 


 


Motion by Kittleson, to convene the Committee into closed session, second by Lawrence. 


Motion passed on a roll call vote 11-0. 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn, second by Jenson. Motion carried 11-0. The Committee of the 


Whole adjourned in closed session at 8:45 p.m. 


 


 


 


    
 





